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Mr. Spt'aker: Madam Clerk. is there a quorum 
pre:-. ent? 

~adam Clerk: There is. Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to c;der. 
We wi ll proceed at thi s time with morning prayers. 

1 Prayers 1 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: We will proceed at the time with the 
Order Paper. 

Are there any Tabling of Documents this morning? 
The Honourable Member of Whitehorse Riverdale? 

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling 
th is morning, a paper that relates to the subject, The 
Establishment of a Committee for Yukon's Future. I 
believe we have a resolution that is in Committee of the 
Whole, and I think this information would be pertinent 
to that, and I would like to introduce it at th is time. 

Mr. Speaker: Proceed. 
Are there any further Documents for Tabling? 
Reports of Committees? Petitions? Introduction of 

Bills? 
Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of 

Papers? Are there any Notices of Motion or Resolution? 
Are there any Statements by Ministers? 
We will then proceed to the Question Period . 

QUESTION PERIOD 

Mr. Speaker: Have you any questions? 
The Honourable Minister of Education? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling, 
Legislative Returns to written Questions Numbers 11 , 
20 and 23. In reply to a question asked by the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie on November the 18th about Pro
ject Coach, the budget amount was $5,400.00, expendi
ture to date was $1,375.00. The number taking the 
course, there were 22 enrolled, and when the course was 
given, 16 showed up to attend the program. 

Mr. Speaker: There being no fur ther questions, we 
will - the Honourable Minister of Health and Welfare? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker, yesterday Mr. 
Fleming asked a question concerning how much part 
time nurses who relieve the public health nurses in the 
outlying areas are paid. The answer, Mr. Speaker, is 
that community health nurses have a pay scale com
posed of three main sections, Community Health Ser
vices 1, 2 and 3.Sections 1 and 2 are dependent upon the 
years of nursing experience. Section 3 depends upon the 
nurse having a Public Health Certificate. Each section 
has five different levels so that increments are awarded 
for each year of service . The salary ranges from $12 ,035 
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to $15,783, plus isolated post allowance. 
Part time replacements are paid under the same 

scale, but for the hours they work, computed on the 
yearly rate. This means that the part time nurse's edu
cational qualifications and experience are taken into 
consideration when she is placed on the salary scale. 

Mr. Speaker: Th e Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua. 

Question re: Approaches to Tagish Bridge 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I have a question 
for the Commissioner this morning in regards to the 
approaches to the new Tagish Bridge. 

The last Commissioner in this House agreed to bring 
forward, when the plans were finished, the plans for the 
bridge before construction started so we could take a 
look at them, and I'm wondering if this same thing could 
be done with the approaches also, the approach raod 
that leads to the bridge so that we will have prior know
ledge as to where they are going to go other than on the 
road that is there now. 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner. 

Mr. Commissioner: I would be pleased to bring that 
forward for the Honourable Member. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua. 

Question re: Campground at Carcross 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I also have another 
question for Mr. Commissioner. 

I think, two or three Sessions back, there was some 
discussions as to a campground that may be situated 
close to Carcross, in that vicinity, due to the new road 
going through and everything, and I'm wondering if 
there is anything being done about this? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker, I'd like to take 
that question under advisement and respond at a later 
date. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootalinqua. 

Question re: K.V.A. Grant to Dawson 

Mr. Fleming: I'm not really trying to belabour the 
Commissioner, but I do have these questions. 

Is it true that the government gave the K.V .A. at 
Dawson a grant or some assistance last year , in '76, 
approximately, I think somewhere in the neighbour
hood of $500.00 or $5,000.00, it's just more or less 
rumours, I guess. Is it true, also that they raised the 
licences for running the establishment at that time? 
And, if so, would I be right in assuming that K. V .A. did 
not gain financially in any way? 

Mr. Speaker: Mr. Commissioner? 



Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker. again I would 
have to go to the Member of the Executive Committee 
responsible for that particular aspect. However. one 
question of clarification, raise the licences for that es
tablishment - do you mean Diamond Tooth Gertie's or 
something like that. or what licence fee are you refer
ring to specifically? 

Mr. Fleming: The gambling licences. the tables. 
Mr. Commissioner. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River? 

Question re: Annual Chest X-rays for Cyprus-Anv il 
Employees 

Mr. McCall: Yes. Mr. Speaker, I have three written 
questions for the Minister of Health and Welfare. 

In view of the fact that Cyprus-Anvil 's agreements 
with its employees allows employees to take their an
nual chest x-rays within normal working hours without 
loss of wages, why has the Northern Health Services 
decided that in Faro, only Friday after normal working 
hours can be the only time the majority of 
Cyprus-Anvil's employees can take their annual 
x-rays? 

Question re: Overtime for Nursing Personnel 

Mr. McCall: My next written question, Mr. Speake; 
is, are the overtime rates being paid to nurs ing person
nel of Northern Health Services in Faro for work done 
after normal working hours, with respect to chest 
x-rays? 

Question re: Qualifications for Use of X-ray Units 

Mr. McCall: My final question , Mr. Speaker. Is it 
the policy of Northern Health Services in Faro to allow 
the normal qualified personnel to use x-ray units in the 
outlying districts? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale? 

Question re: Policy Regarding Gravel Pits 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for 
the Minister of Local Government this morning. 

I understand that a gravel pit policy, or a policy for 
the use of gravel pits is being developed by the Territor
ial Government, and I was just wondering what prog
ress has been made to date on that, when we expect 
some sort of final decisions that you can let it be known 
to the people who are most interested? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Local 
Government? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I thought cer
ta inly my political downfall would be at least on some
thing like dogs and cats or sewer and water operations , 
but it appears it is going to be on gravel pits , Mr. 
Speaker. 

There have been problems,and there 's no doubt about 
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it with gravel pit operations. particularly within 
Municipalities. and we've been requested by both the 
Municipality of the City of Dawson and the City of 
Whitehorse, to take over all gravel pit operations within 
the Municipal boundaries. that would be a subject for 
debate by itself. 

In any case, we have accepted back the responsibility 
from various municipalities. and we are presently for
mulating a policy and it's at the stage now where within 
the next week or two. that we will be consulting with 
people who are using gravel pit and quarry operations. 
to see whether we can reach a consensus on a gravel pit 
policy prior to it becoming government policy, Mr. 
Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from 
Hootal in qua? 

Mr. Fleming: Supplementary. Mr. Speaker. The 
Minister of Local Governme nt isa speaking of 
Municipalities. I notice. and due to the problem we have 
had this Fall, the contractors in the Teslin area have 
been cut off from all the gravel pits that were being used 
for many years by the Federal Government employees 
there, and in turn , the Federal Government hauled from 
those same pits afterwards. 

I might ask if there's anything going to be done in the 
area of the smaller towns and outlying villages in the 
Yukon too? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Local 
Government? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr. Speaker, this will be a 
Territory-wide policy with different regulations to
wards different degrees of Municipal status, L.I.D. 's, 
unorganized areas and Municipalities. 

The general philosophy and policy is because of the 
very great pressures that have been put on the Govern
ment, Department of Local Government by 
Municipalit ies, by unorganized areas, by Local Im
provement Districts, that the day of free and easy, un
limited laissez-faire access to gravel anywhere, any 
place, any time within the Yukon, is fast coming to an 
end . 
. I don't know whether it's goodor bad, but it 's the posi
tion that we have been forced into. 

Mr. Speaker : The Honourable Member from Pelly 
River? 

Question re: Construction of Bridge across Pelly River 

Mr. McCall: I have a question for the Minister of 
Local Government. 

In view of the fact that there is a considerable amount 
of exploration going on on North Canol Road, does the 
Minister know of any plans in the works for construction 
of a bridge across the Pelly Cross River? 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Lo.:-al 
Government? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: J' d be most happy, Mr. 
Speaker, to bring that question to the Executive Com
mittee Member in charge of highways, Mr. Miller. 

() 
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Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Klon
dike? 

Question re: Report on Labour Relations in Germany 

Mr. Berger: Yes. Mr. Speaker. a question for Mr. 
Commissioner this morning. 

On May 27th this year. I asked the then Commiss ioner 
for a report on labour re lations in Germany. It was by 
Charles Conaghan, Vice-President of U .B.C. and the the 
Commissioner said he would look into it , to get it to this 
House. if possible. I was wondering if there was ever 
any action taken on this. 

Mr. Commissioner: Mr. Speaker . not to my know
ledge. but I will certa inly check into it and repor t back to 
the House. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honoura ble Minis ter of Hea lth 
and Welfare? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Speaker. on November the 
15th, the Honourable Member from Ogilvie asked ques
tions regarding stabilization plans for asbestos tailings 
at the Clinton Creek Mine , and on surveys by regional 
mining engineers on asbestos fibre levels, where asbes
tos 1s handled or stor ed , other than at the mine, and I 
have that information to table th is morning. 

. Mr. Speaker: If there are no further questions, we 
w1 ll now proceed to the Orders of the Day to Motions . 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MOTIONS 

Madam Clerk: Motion Number 31, s tanding in the 
name of the Honourable Member Mrs . Watson . 

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared 
to d1scuss Motion 31 this morning? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Kluane , seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Hoota linqua , that Legislative Return 
Number 3 be referred to Committee of the Whole. Are 
you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed ? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car
ried. 

( M otioncarried J 

Bill Number 12, Second Reading 

Madam Clerk: Second reading of Bill12 , An Ordi
nance to Amend the Municipal Ordinance. 
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Mr.Speaker: UnderPublicBills, ithas t enmoved , 
pardon me .. 

The Honoura ble Member from Whitehorse North 
Centre. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move, sec
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill Number 12 be read a second time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
the Honourable Member from Whitehorse West , that 
BJ!l Number 12 be now read a second time. 

Are you prepared for the question ? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car
ried. 

r Motion carried J 

Bill Number 10, F inancial Administration Ordinance. 

Madam Clerk: Third reading, Bill 10 , Financial 
Administration Ordinance . 

Mr. Speaker: The Honoura ble Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, I move , sec
onded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill Number 10, Financial Administration 
Ordinance be now read a third t ime. 

Mr. Speaker : It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre, seconded by 
th.e Honourable Member from Whitehorse West , that 
B1ll Number 10 be now read a third time. 

Are you prepared for the question ? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker : I shall declare the motion is carried. 

(Motion carried ) 

Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title of 
the Bill? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr. Speaker. I move, 
seconded by the Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
West, that Bill Number 10, F inancial Administration 
Ordinance do now pass and tha t the title be as on the 
Order Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse North Centre , seconded by 



the Honoura ble Member from Whitehorse West. that 
Bill Number 10 do now pass and tha t the t itle be as on the 
Order Paper. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I sha ll declare th;ll the Motion is car
ried. 

r Motion earned' 

Mr. Speaker: Bill Number 10 has passed this ll ouse. 
May I have your further pleasure a t this time'! 
The Honourable Member from Pelly River . 

Mr. McCall: I would move that Mr. Speaker do now 
leave theChair a nd that the House resolve into Commit
tee of the Whole for the purpose of considering Bills. 
Sessional Papers and Motions . 

Mr. Fleming: I'll second that. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Pelly River . seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Hootalinqua, that Mr. Speaker do now 
leave the Chair. the House resolve into Committee of the 
Whole for the purpose of considering Bills. Sessional 
Papers and Motions. 

Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the Motion is car
ried. 

r Motion carried 1 

rMr. Speaker leaves the Chair J 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman : I now cal ;I thi s Committee to order 
a nd declare a brief recess. 

rR ECESSJ 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
F irst on the agenda this morning is the reconsidera

tion of the Electr ical Protection Ordinance. At this time 
we have appearing as witnesses before Committee, Mr. 
Bert Toews, who is the Chief Electr ical Inspector , and 
Bert Hadvick, representing the Electrical Contractors. 

I refer you to - if you have any questions of the 
witnesses, please don 't hesitate. They don't actually 
have a brief to present to us , but they are willing to -
they have come to a nswer our queries regarding the 
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proble ms we encountered on reading the Urdmance. 
I refer you to page one. It has been moved by Mr. 

McKinnon. seconded by Mrs. WhyGrd. tha t Bill Number 
Two ent itled "Electri cal Protection Ordinanc" be 
amended as follows: Page two. Section Two. "owner" 
to read "Owner when referring to electr ical equipment 
or wiring includes a lessee. occupant or person in 
cha rge of premises". The bottom of page two. 

Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman. it should be " lessee" 
not "leasee" . 

Mr. Cha irman : A typographical error. Mr. Mcin
tyre. 

Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I wonder if 1 could ask 
a ques tion in regard to the Canadian Electrical Code on 
Page one? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. I think for the purposes of wh<Jt 
we have to do we will not mere ly accept the amend
ments, but the whole Ordinance I think should be avai l
able for d iscussion. in view of the fact the witnesses are 
now here to answer our questions. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think it should be 
directed possibly to Mr. Toews. and I had some concern 
when we were going through the legis lation about the 
Electrical Code, and we are more specifically in
terested in Part One, I believe, and my concern was that 
if a person has some electrical work done to their house . 
a nd my concern was that if the inspector went in and 
inspected that piece of work it would give him the au
thority to go into the rest of the house and to ask that that 
electrical work in the rest of the house be brought up to 
the s tandards of the Electrical Code, as amended of 
today, 1976. 

Now. is my concern in this area correct? 

Mr. Toews: The e lectr ical cod e itsel f in the 
guidelines to the administration of it does ma ke refer
ence to that particular problem , and the only time that it 
says that we can enforce the present standa rd on an 
·existing home is when it is subject to misuse, hard 
usage, that it has been mishandled. In other words, if 
the wiring was up to a certain standard in 1955, provided 
it wasn't misused and it's in proper working condition, 
we do not have the authority to require the replacement 
of this wiring. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs . Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: That is the thing that I think , that I 
was most concerned about was the Electrical Code and 
the amendments. I am concerned though that , I don't 
know whether the electrical inspector s or whether it 's 
the building inspectors require quite often where people 
are applying for a permit they 're told that they have to 
update a ll the wiring, you know, before they can get the 
permit, and I suppose it probably ties in with the build
ing permit requirements. 

(J 
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Mr. Toews: The National Building Code. which we 
are involved with as well in the inspection of electricals. 
requires that when a house is relocated onto new prop
erty. in other words. if the person lifted the house up and 
put it on a basement, it 's not the same as if they picked it 
up and physically moved it to another location. When 
it ·s physically moved, then the National Building Code 
requires that it be brought up to present standards. This 
would basically involve a house being moved from pos
sibly downtown Whitehorse to one of the subdivisions. It 
would have to meet then the present requirements of the 
National Building Code for that particular subdivision. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. this is most enlighten
ing. but if you were just building on a room and you were 
applying for a building permit. you do not have to rewire 
your whole house. 

Mr. Toews: That is correct. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. Mr. Chairman: that 
clarifies a lot. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: There are two separate sec
tions. the one dealing with the electrical code and the 
other one being 512 l where. in the opinion of an inspec
tor. the installation or use of electrical equipment or 
wiring contrary to the requirements of the code would 
not create an undue hazard to life or property. he may 
permi t such installation. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further debate on the amend
ment? 

Mrs. Watson: May I ask another question? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. you may. Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: My questions were posed - the ques
tions asked were regarding residences. What about 
commercial places if they are making alterations and 
the electrical inspector comes. is asked to approve the 
alterations; they have to have a plan, I believe. Can the 
electrical inspector require them to rewire the whole 
thing, to bring it up to the standard of today in the 
Electrical Code? 

Mr. Toews: Public Buildings have a slightly differ
ent requirement. We're enforcing, as far as the public 
buildings in the Yukon, we 're looking not at the code 
requirements as much as our concern to public safety of 
the people that are going to be entering that property. 
The only time that we do require updating in the older or 
the existing part of the building is when we feel that 
public safety is in jeopardy. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. One ... 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to 
point out that there is two "typos" on the first amend-
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ment "owner". The only change that shot,;ld have been 
made in the definition of .. owner" was the grammatical 
change pointed out by the HonourablP Member from 
Mayo. That "means" should have been taken out. Un
fortunately. there is now a spelling mistakP., and a word 
left out: and the Section should read: 

"Owner when referring to electrical equipment or 
property or wiring includes a lessee. occupant and per
son in charge of premises". 

Mr. Chairman: Another typographical error . 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. my question. I think. 
should be directed to theM inister of Local Government. 
"Licence" in the interpretation sect ion means a licence 
issued pursuant to this Ordinance. 

There is only one kind of licence under this Ordinance. 
am I correct. and that is the electrical contractor's I i
cence? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes. Mr. Chairman. as far as 
I'm aware. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: The licence that they are referring to 
here is basically a take-off of the old Alberta Electrical 
Act that they had prior to the new. where they have what 
they call a master electrician. They used to have what 
they called a "P" licence; this was not a licence to 
operate a business: this was a licence to obtain electri
cal permits, and this is basically what we were refer
ring to here. This is why, farther into the Ordinance. we 
required that they still obtained the business licence. 

This licence here is just a licence to obtain electrical 
permits. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: The only type of licence that you get 
under this Ordinance is an electrical contractor's li
cence? 

Mr. Chairman: That is correct. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. one more question. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: What is the prescr ibed fee. or what is 
the present prescribed fee for electrical contractor's 
licences? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: Possibly Mr. Hadvick could answer. 
because he is buying them. I am not. 

Mr. Ha·dvick: It varies into what the fields that 
you're working in. The contractor ·s licence primarily in 
the City of Whitehorse is a hundred dollars. If you have 
retail sales, there's another hundred dollars. and also if 
you're just a distributor i t's also possibly another fee of 
a hundred dollars in that area. It depends in what field of 
occupation you're primarily in. 



If you're strictly contracting, then it is a hundred 
dollars. 

Mr. Chairman: That's the fees you're referring to, 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: No, Mr. Chairman, that's the business 
licence fee. 

What I want is what would be the fee of the electrical 
contractor's licence that you get under this Ordinance, 
and this would have to be Territorial ... 

Mr. Toews: I am sorry, there would be no fee 
charged. Under the Ordinance there would be no fee 
charged for the permit licence, this licence that's refer
red to in here. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: There will be a charge for 
permits, not for the licence. 

Mr. Toews: Yes. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have another ques
tion. 

If I was qualified, and now I must read my qualifica
tions , a qualified journeyman, is that right? 

Mr. Chairman: You're eminently qualified, Mrs. 
Watson- perhaps not in this field. 

Mrs. Watson: When I'm finished with this, I may 
know a little more about electricity! 

However, if I was a qualified journeyman and I 
wanted to do electrical work, I couldn't just go and get a 
licence. I would have to get a contracting licence, am I 
correct? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: I believe you're correct there; you 
would have to get the contracting licence to be classed 
as an electrical contractor, but unless you met there
quirements for the qualified person,.the bonding, et cet
era you would not be entitled to obtam a permit to do the 
wo~k, even though you had a licence to operate as a 
business. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I may as well be blunt. 
What I'm trying to get at, I'm looking at Sections 13 and 
14 . Section 13(1) says: "No person shall make an elec
trical installation or instal electrical equipment or ad
vertise or hold himself out as a contractor unless he 
holds a valid and subsisting licence issued under Section 
14,. 

It doesn't say electrical contractor's licence. Four
teen - and you see, you can make an electrical installa
tion or instal electrical equipment and still not be an 
electrical contractor. If you advertise and hold yourself 
out as a contractor, you need an electrical contractor's 
licence, yes, but if you want to make an electrical. instal
lation or equipment, you should be able to get a l1cence, 
should you not? 

Also, because 14(1 ) then says: "The Commissioner 
may issue to a qualified journeyman or person who 
employs a qualified journeyman, an electnca.l 
contractor's licence to engage in business as an electn-
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cal contractor", and we are tying in 13( 1 1 directly mto 
14( ll and we a re saying that the only way you can get a 
licence is to want to be an electrical contractor. 

My point is, if you are a qualified journeyman. shou ld 
you not be able to get a licence. if you may not want to be 
a contractor. You may want to do it for yourself. or for 
your son or your daughter. or something like that. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. P.adv1ck. do you have a re
sponse to that? 

Mr. Hadvick: If you want to do something for your
self, the intent is not to prevent an individual. but it 
varies upon the areas to which you're lookm~ at as a 
means of livelihood in the area and the locat1on. Th1s 
Ordinance here is intended to cover the whole Yukon 
where different conditions exist. 

There 's two ways of looking at it: if the guy isn't - if 
it's a oarticular substantial, feasible saving to him - if 
you ju~t want to make your own installation where tl:e 
fee of electrical contractor's licence and to what he s 
going to save it's going to be no advantage. And if he 
wants to do his own work, I understand that m the Ordi
nance it is not meant to prohibit him as long as it passes 
inspection. If he's just doing a minor job for himself, 
there's no real financial gain for h1m. 

Mrs. Watson: Well , Mr. Chairman, but if you're 
building your own house and are a qualified jour
neyman, you can get a permit, but shouldn 't you also get 
a licence because you are a qualified journeyman? You 
shouldn't have to be a contractor . 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, it is not man
datory. 

It has to be on a permit rather than on the licence 
because we just are going to be absolutely with no con
trol whatsoever if only a qualified journeyman electn
cian can have a licence. If he's only doing work for 
someone else it's not mandatory for him to have a 
licence. He c~n get a permit to be able to do it. So the 
qualifications or the exceptions have to be on the per
mit, not on the licence. 

We're coming into a field where I thought we had 
argued quite well in the, you know, the last time we went 
around the Ordinance, that this was the only way of 
controlling the situation. 

Mrs. Watson: But, Mr. Chairman, th is is ... 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: What if you are a qualified jour
neyman? And there 's the exceptions for if yo~'re b.uild
ing your own home. But if you are a qua!Jf1ed JOUr
neyman and you are building a hotel, you're building a 
restaurant; you can get the permit, but you have to get 
an electrical contractor because he is the only one that 
can get a licence, so you have to take out an electrical 
contractor's licence to do your own work. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews. 

Mr. Toews: No, we have provided exceptions for the 
owners to do their own wiring. 

() 
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Mrs. Watson: In a commercia l establishment·> 

Mr. Toews: Oh. I'm sorry. this is ... 

Mrs. Watson: No. you see. 1i 's the commercial I'm 
thinking of. and the reason is that an electrical 
contractor's prescribed fee and it might be that the 
electrical contractor's licence fee might be in the 
neighbourhood of three or four hundred dollars. If a guy 
doesn't want to be an electrical contractor. he only 
wants to obtain a single licence so that he can get a 
permit so that he can wire his own hotel. I ·m thinking of 
Norm Chamberlist. 

Mr. Chairman: Order. please. 

Mrs. Watson: lie should certainl y not have to take 
out an electrical contractor's licence and pay three or 
four hundred dollars if the fee would be less. 

Mr. Chairman: The Chair hates to be repetitious . 
but it is necessary that every day I must remind Mem
bers that they should be recognized by the Chair and 
that they should speak to the Chair. 

Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I don't have too 
much problem with this section except for. as the 
Member from Kluane has stated, that this really does. 
in a sense. stop the journeyman that owns a business 
place from doing his own work. 

I think that possibly the witnesses would verify this as 
it is also a safeguard for the Territory for the electrical 
contractors that are paying large monies for a licence 
so that they, a person just cannot go out and help himself 
to. say I own this or I own that or even if he don 't own it 
he can pretend he's in there with it, and just go ahead 
and do work wherever he wants to do it, and actually not 
hold a licence of any kind; consequently, we would 
have, actually, what we've got today. There is no con
trol over it at all, so I think that is what this does 
safeguard, does it not? 

Mr. Toews: The safeguard is twofold. It is - it ac
complishes that and also something that isn't stated in 
here but is a policy of the wholesale suppliers of electri
cal supplies. They will not deal with anyone but electri
cal contractors so that it's possible, if you were going to 
be doing your own wiring in a commercial- it would be 
to your advantage to become a licensed contractor to be 
able to purchase the items at wholesale. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I was 
hoping that I could get some clarification on 13 and 14 
too. I thought I knew what it meant but, having heard 
some of the remarks, I don't know. I would ask the 
witness, or ask him for clarification on that. I think that 
13 and 14 certainly pertain to a commercial, a man that 
holds himself out as a contractor or is doing commercial 
work. I would like some clarification on that; I don't 
think it even pertains to a journeyman that, for in
stance, who does want to do his own wiring, as Mrs. 
Watson has said. Certainly, only he needs a permit, not 
a licence. 

l'age:m; 

Mr. Toews: That is correct. 

Mrs. Watson: That is not what Section 13111 says. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson~ 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry. Mr. 
Chairman? It says no person shall make an electr ical 
installation or instal electrical equ ipment as two of the 
requirements unless he holds a valid and subsisting 
licence issued under Section 14 and we are limiting the 
licence- we are tying a journeyman's qualification to 
licence. but then in Section 17 you're tyi ng your 
journeyman's qualifications to a tempo!'ary working 
permit. Should it not be tied into a tempcrary working 
licence? 

Now. I could be wrong: I ·m not saying that my- but I 
have spent a lot of time trying to get this straightened in 
my mind and I am not trying to put blocks. I just want to 
be very careful so that when the legislation is through 
it's saying what we want it to say. and so that you can do 
what you want it to do. I think we've got ourselves a 
bottleneck. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Berger? 

Mr. Berger: I am getting more confused. and I 
would like to get a ruling from the Chair. We are discus
sing "owner" on page two. Section 2: how did we jump 
to Section 13 all of a sudden? 

Mr. Chairman: Well. as I indicated. Mr. Berger. I 
am trying to allow latitude in debate so that we have full 
debate on the issues that are before us. I agree this is not 
directly pertinent to what is being discussed. but it does 
have reference to it, so I am allowing debate on it. 

Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman. again I wonder if we 
could consider rephrasing that to say something l ike 
this: that "No person shall make an electrical installa
tion or instal electrical equipment as a contractor or 
advertise unless he holds a valid subsisting licence is
sued under ... " 

Would that make it clear to Mrs. Watson? I think I- I 
hope I understand it. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. I think that's 
exactly what the Section does say. I don't know whether 
- it has to be clarified further. whether that's good 
drafting as the Honourable Member has stated. that if it 
clears it up to any greater extent, because I read this 
exactly as that's what the Section says. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman. I'm wondering if the 
witness could clarify this for me. as it was brought up a 
few minutes ago and it does pertain to this Section due to 
the fact that the wholesale operators will not sell to date. 

Now, you own a place; if you're going to do a little on 
your own, you have to run down to one of the little stores 
downtown or something and try to help yourself. You 
can't go and get wholesalr. wires and so forth and so on 
unless you have a contractor's licence. That's the way it 
stands today in this Territory. 



~r. Toews: This is correct. This isn't a policy that 
we Imposed on the wholesale suppliers. This was their 
own personal position on - bec:;ause they were there to 
serve the contractors, not operate in opposition to the 
retail outlets in the towns. 

Could I answer Mrs. Watson's question regarding li 
cence and permit? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. 

Mr. Toews: I think we are confusing possibly the 
word_ " licence" an~ "permit". The permit is the per
miSSIOn to do a particular installation. The licence is the 
au~horization to operate as a contractor to do any instal
latiOn that they w1sh to take a permit out on and I think 
this is possibly where we are getting a bit of ~onfusion is 
the two different words. ' 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

. Mrs. ~a!son: Mr. Chairman, this is very true; the 
hcenc~ 1s g1ven to a qualified person, the permit is given 
f?r a JOb, but then, why do you give a definition for a 
~1cenc_e and an el~~t:ical contractor 's licence? Why not 
JUSt g1ve one defm1t10n , electrical contractor's licence, 
because that's all you've got. 

_when you use the word electric licence, you use elec
tncal con_tractor's licence. Then the next question is, if 
t~e permit IS for the work, why do you give under Sec
t10n_17 ! under Section 17 I believe it is- yes- sub (two) , 
agam m sub (one), "No person may work or hold him
~elf o~t as a qualified journeyman unless he is a qual
Ified JOurneyman within the meaning of this Ordi
nance. " Okay. The chief inspector may issue a tempor
ary working permit to any person who satisfies him that 
he is a qualified journeyman. The permit is for a job in 
the rest of the legislation. You get a permit if you want to 
change your house ; you get a permit if you're building a 
house. It 's for the job. 

But in 17, you're giving a temporary working permit 
for someone because they aren't fully qualified not just 
for a specific job, or am I wrong? ' 

Mr. Toews: No, I'm sorry, this here is the- what 
Canada now has is what they call an Interprovincial red 
seal on the electricians' certificates, and if we have a 
contractor that comes in with a qualified man from 
another jurisdiction, as long as he meets the other re
quirements of the contractor, even though he does not 
have a journeyman ticket from the Yukon as what 
we're requiring, then he is allowed to work dn that on 
that Interprovincial seal. ' 

The Interprovincial seal only came into effect about 
e~ght years ago, so there's a lot of journeyman electri
Cians who ~ave their ticket from Ontario, Quebec, any 
other provmce, and they also recognize these, but then 
they are required within a certain time frame to write 
the exam in the Yukon, if they wish to remain here. 

Mr. Chairman: I would like to ask the witnesses just 
o~e pomt that that might bring up. Is the training that is 
g1ven for becoming a journeyman here in the Yukon is 
this recognized through other provinces? ' 
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Mr. Toews: It is recognized through agreement. 
The chief electrical inspector from Alberta discussed 
with me the last time I was out on a conference regard
ing some complaints they had from a few Yukon electri
cians that had come out and didn't seem to know how to 
do the work that they were involved in , and this is some
thing that possibly, because we follow the B.C. qualifi
cations which are different than Alberta , even though 
they are tied into an interprovincial agreement. it -
this is where the problem was created. 

Mr. Chairman: Are the qualifications in B.C. ac
cepted in Alberta? 

Mr. Toews: Only on certain levels. B.C. has the A. B 
and C level, and I think Alberta will not recognize the C 
level in their province. 

Mr. Chairman: So a journeyman trained in the 
Yukon would be able to obtain work in Alberta? 

Mr. Toews: Yes . 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: But the exam is standard, is it 
not? 

Mr. Toews: The interprov incial exam for the jour
neyman electrician is standard. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I believe that exam is 
given here, is it not? We can write that exam? 

Mr. Toews: Yes. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: It is standard. 

Mr. Chairman: Please recognize the Chair, Mr. 
McKinnon. 

Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I'm just curious on that 
point. Just going back for a moment now to this Inter
provincial seal. The question I am curious about is, 
r~cently one of our apprentices passed his Interprovin
cial red seal in British Columbia, along with his heavy 
duty mechanic, and yet he had to take the same exam 
o~ce he came back to the Yukon. ln other words, it took 
h1m two Interprovincial red seal exams for the same 
red seal. I'm just curious as to why. 

One was an electrician, the other one was a mechanic. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: It was in the mechanical trade, was it? 

Mr. McCall: And also electrical. 

Mr. Toews: I'm sorry, I am personally not involved 
in the writing of the exams or the enforcement of the 
exam requirements , and why this would be required I 
do not know. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Scholes, the 
head of the Vocational Section in the Department of 
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Education, is the person who operates these particular 
programs. I understand from him that we are- have a 
common agreement with provinces that we set an In
terprovincial red seal certificate. If the person does that 
examination and is awarded the red seal here, that qual
ifies him in any province which recognizes the system of 
the red seal throughout the provinces. 

But he would be the person to answer specific ques
tions in detail about whether or not a person would have, 
on a particular occasion , to do a second examination 
here . 

Mr. Chairman: The reason this question was raised 
was that I believe there have been such difficulties of 
people being trained in the Yukon and being recognized 
in the provinces. This has been raised by journeymen 
here in the Yukon, and so I'm inquiring, is this so? Is 
there such a problem? 

Mr .. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, there is more 
than one electrician's trade, and there are other trades 
involved. Perhaps we could ask Mr. Scholes to attend 
and answer specific questions dealing with the general
ity of the situation in respect of red seal in tradesmen, 
and in particular the construction electrical trade. He 
would have the answers at his fingertips . 

Mr. Chairman: No, I think this was with specific 
reference to the e lectrical trade , where these were re
ported. 

Mr. Toews: I believe what possibly could have been 
the problem with the electrical , Bert just mentioned 
here, we have two classes of electricians in the Yukon. 
One is the industrial , which is involved in general heavy 
duty maintenance and the construction trade which is 
involved in the actual installation of wiring. It's two 
completely different worlds, and this is possibly where 
the person had the qualifications as a construction elec
trician, and had to get the industrial to meet it. 

Mr. Chairman: One other problem that might be 
appropriate at this time is that the number of qualified 
journeymen seems to fluctuate a great deal. At certain 
times of the y~ar it is very difficult, I understand, to find 
qualified journeymen for the work that is available. Is 
this not a problem? 

Mr. Toews: This is a problem generally in the 
Yukon, is because we are either a feast or famine area. 
When the construction season is at its peak, you can't 
buy a tradesmen of any sort , be it a carpenter or an 
electrian. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I just wanted to clarify one point here, 
Mr. Chairman. I'm talking about industrial electri
cians, and Mr. Legal Advisor brought up a very interest
ing point. The situation in the apprenticeship program 
in the Yukon is about 15 years behind the times, and this 
is because of ignorance shown by certain individuals, 
and this is why in Cyprus we ventured into our own 
program and I am very deeply involved with it. 

We have found that an inter-provincial red seal issued 
in the Yukon is fine, but when the training is done out-
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s ide the Yukon, which in most cases it has to be because 
of lack of facilities, and in our particular case, most of 
our apprentices in the different trades go down to 
British Columbia, because it's one of the best in Canada. 
Alberta is 15 years behind the times. 

The point I'm trying to say, Mr. Chairman, is that the 
interprovincial seal is fine and dandy in the Yukon, but 
an individual that passes his exams with flying colours 
in British Columbia, that comes back with his red seal, 
has to sit that same examination again in the Yukon, 
which I find rather ridiculous, and this is what's going 
on and it should be stopped. 

Mr. Toews: As I have said , this is outside of my 
jurisdiction. I 'm not involved personally with the ad
ministration of the qualification exams. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Hadvick, I believe you had 
some comments on this. 

Mr. Hadvick: Primarily this Ordinance, Mr. 
Cha irman, is concerned with the service to the con
sumer or the public at large within the contractor's 
scope. It is a policy, as far as various provinces, a per
son before he is allowed to serve the consumer in gen
eral as a contractor, he must serve four years appren
ticeship, plus work three years for other contractors, 
then he is required to sit down and write, in some areas , 
a Masters exam which is considerably six to eight 
hours, some of them average around six hours, before 
he is entitled to put himself onto the public at large. 

This Ordinance, as I understand it here, is protection 
for the consumer and primarily the contractor. We're 
leading into trades that goes into apprenticeship, dis
cussing primarily areas that are not applicable to the 
Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: With all due respect to the witness, Mr. 
Chairman, a lot of these trades and contractors do a lot 
of work in the existing industry and I could give an 
example where contractors who are supposed to have 
qualified electricians, have come up from places like 
Washington and places like Alberta to do electrical con
tracting work on property as a contractor, and this is 
what basically what this Ordinance is all about. 

The example I'm using is Cameo who have electri
cally operated equipment, and these people are coming 
in and it's a component style type of machinery and it's 
just hooked together like putting a plug in the socket, 
They call themselves electricians. They're more like 
glorified labourers, Mr . Chairman, as far as I'm con
cerned. They haven't a clue what it 's all about and yet 
they're classified as electricians within the contractors 
frame of operation for the company I work for, so it does 
overlap into the industry sector. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman , several points. 
One of them a little application on the problem that the 
Honourable Member from Pelly makes and I was 
amazed to fir.1 out that under the last Ordinance that a 
company could contract, an outside company could con
tract a major, and I mean a major contract, and the 



Honourable Member knows which one I'm talking 
about. which is a public building where there is going to 
be many. maybe even hundreds of people staying and. 
under the past Ordinance. they did not have to have one 
qualified journeyman electrician during any of the wir
ing. 

That building is probably the most highly unionized 
house that the Yukon knows and it was only because of 
the strike and the involvement of the Chief Electrrical 
Inspector of the Yukon and his contacts in Ottawa that 
l'orced the company to put at least one qualified jour
neyman in charge of the labourers wnrking on a public 
building in the Yukon. Now we have no, no protection 
under our present Ordinance to <.rctually force that per
son. 

When I heard some ol' the horn ·r·,tories that went on in 
public buildings in th e Yukon by the Chief Electrical 
Inspector. I said that no matter how contraversial this 
Ordinance is , we've just got to get some sort of protec
tion for people living in public buildings and try and 
adapt it a bit to the Yukon necessity. 

The Honourable Chairman of Committees made a 
point that I'd like to hear Mr. Hadvick comment on 
because it all depends who you talK to . what this Ordi
nance will do. Talking to Mr . 1-l .dvtck. he says that the 
journeyman need a protection ot an Ordinance so that 
there will be journeymen available to do the job. He 
gives the instances of qualified journeymen leaving the 
Yukon because they have no protection that they have in 
every other province under an Electrical Protection 
Ordinance. 

You talk to other people who have been holding them
selves out as electrical contractors, who say that this 
Ordinance is just going to make it even more difficult to 
get an electrical contract, so it all depends who you talk 
to as to whether it'c; going to help or to hinder and I'd just 
like to hear Mr. H •• dvick 's comments on that point, the 
point the Honourable Chairman raised in Committee. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. H<.rdvick. 

Mr. H~ dvick: There has been a few journeymen 
have left llle Territory. The same, our particular trade 
primarily is for the protection of life and property. I 
have known instances, I'm on my 32nd year in this 
trade. I have known persons who have classified them
selves as journeymen, holding a licensed journeyman 
certificate. That certificate has been withdrawn from 
due to improper work where installation is made. In 
order for him to acquire again, he would have to reapply 
and rewrite and reapprentice. 

The situation , Alderman from Pelly, I agree with this 
ourselves as a contractor , which I am. This individual 
who hires himself out as a journeyman, he won't do it if 
he has a licence. What are your journeymen in? Are you 
domestic, primary housing, commercial or industrial? 

A straight journeyman's licence does not tell you the 
knowledge of the individual. 

We in the trade take a pride in it , as we all in our 
responsible positions are proud of what we are doing , 
but as our job is for protection of life and property, and 
in order to carry these duties out , you have to be well 
qualified. But the ones that you're working with , you 
find individuals who are not doing installations that 
meet this requirement, or have a pride in their trade, 
the good people that you require here, leave the Terril-
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ory or go into other fields. to which one member. who 
used to be a past instructor at the Vocational School. Mr. 
George Moore. is no longer in the trade. He's in the glass 
business. so it's the same situation as it is here. 

As a contractor. you're liable and responsible for the 
work that you guys do. You hire them out, you' re forced 
to pay them. if you don't pay them to what you are 
supposed to. you have the Labour Relations Board on 
your back. but if you get on a job and they do a job 
inl'erior and they leave the Territory , or they leave. 
you're sti ll stuck with it. So you're damned if you do and 
damned if you don't. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I would like to project a 
general question to the Minister of Local Government. 
I've been through this Ordinance a couple of times. I'm 
curious as to why there isn 't enough protection for our 
contractors within the Yukon Territory, as to contrac
tors that are coming in from outside, and this is quite a 
question that was raised to me many, many times . 

I have noticed in the amendments, that you haven't 
put too much protection in looking after our jour
neymen, and anybody in the electrical field in the 
Yukon, as well as contractors . You have not seemed to 
have tightened up this area, and I'm curious as to why? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McK innon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: We do it generally in the policy 
on Territorial Government contract regulations , where 
there is preference given to Yukon contractors through 
those regulations. We cannot control the Federal con
tracts, and we cannot control private contracts either. 

So in the area where we do have some involvement, 
and we do have some control, we do act and give prefe
rential treatment to Yukon contractors. 

The Federal Government, of course, said that they 
were going to introduce a preferential bid system of 10''/c 
on local contracts- for local contracts on Federal pro
jects. We've seen nothing to the effect that this has been 
done at this point in time, and of course we're not in
terested in trying to go into the private market place 
and interfere with private contracting, and private cal
ling of contracts. 

So in the one area, wh ich are not the major contracts, 
we do do our best to protect the Yukon businesses , Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I'm just curious on this point. I notice 
that there is a lot of lateral given to the inspector when 
he issues permits, and I'm just curious whether the 
Minister has considered this area where permits can 
only be given to contractors that are registered in the 
Yukon, whether they be for a period of time or other
wise. 

I'm just curious whether this area should be tightened 
up even more and what opinion you have on it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, it wasn 't the 
intent of the Ordinance to give such discretion or power~ 
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of flexibility to the inspector. He doesn 't want them, and 
I think that elected Members don't want to see that type 
of great discretionary abil ity in the hands of a member 
of the public ser vice. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr . McCall: I 'm not suggesting for one moment that 
we encourage that. What I am trying to say, Mr. Chair
man , i~ some of the present language you are proposing, 
there IS a lot of lateral as to allowing permits or disal
lowing permits. This is what I'm saying. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I don't think that we 
should be attempting to attack each specific industry in 
isolation. We have tried to attack the whole problem of 
dealing with the protection of Yukon contractors , 
through the contract regulations, and maybe they 're 
not strong enough , but I don 't think the Honourable 
Member has read the updating of those regulations, 
because there is in them, the - to the extent that we can 
go at this time - protection to Yukon contr actors and 
people in business in Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I'm not for one moment trying to at
tack any particular trade or single it out, but I'll say 
this , Mr. Chairman, that the electrical trade is one of the 
most s ignificantly important trades that we have, and if 
it is not done properly, we know what type of damage it 
~an create, so we have to take a very , very close look at 
Jt. 

Mr. Chairman: I have a question , perhaps the wit
nesses have already alluded to and they m ight help me 
to answer. The question has been raised whether by 
enacting this Ordinance, there might be fewer jour
neymen available, and therefore there might be more 
problems created, or it might be the reverse. It might 
create a situation where there would bt more jour
neymen here because of the protection they may re
ceive under this Ordinance. 

Mr. Toews: I feel that the first few year s, we're sti ll 
going to have a problem obtaining the journeyman elec
tr icians for various projects. This is why we've got this 
transitory clause in the back end of the Ordinance. 

What I feel though is that the students that are pres
ently, or have in the last few years attended the Voca
tional School and were given the opportunity to become 
registered apprentices and work for contractors that 
are operating in the Yukon, that over a period of the next 
three years, we will have a lot of homegrown qualified 
electricians that know the area, that know the work 
that's involved in the area, and will be qualified under 
this Ordinance or any other Act in any other Province, 
to work as electricians. 

I think we have to build up a network of qualified 
tradesmen, which is the reason for the transitory sec
tion in the Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
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Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that brmgs me to the 
transitory section 29, and it ties in again with 17 that I 
was questioning, and I was saying - asking, temporary 
working permits and then under 29, you're proposing 
that temporary working permits to any person - al
though they 're not a qualified journeyman, who has 
been carrying work out as a contractor, are you going to 
give them a temporary working permit for each job that 
they do, or will it be one to carry them year by year ? 
What is the intent of that Section? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: The intent will be an annual licence to 
obtain permits, and therefore they can become electri
cal - or continue being electrical contractor. It 's not 
that they are going to take a look at every individual job 
that they are going to bid on, because I think that any 
contractor that is working presently that is not a qual
ified electrician, knows his own personal limits, and I 
feel that they will be able to continue at their own per
sonal level, without any danger to anyoneoe in the other 
work. 

They will just be subject to inspections, the same as 
any other job. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: If it is an annual thing, then it should 
be a temporary working licence. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: We have no objection, Mr. 
Chairman, from changing it to a licence, because then 
we'll get a hundred bucks from them too, as I think we 
should. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, then also I think you 
should look at 17 sub ( 1) or sub (2), whether it would be a 
temporary working permit for a specific job , or whether 
it would be a temporary working licence for that three 
month period. 

Again, it brings me to another question. Would you 
call it an electrical , temporary electrical contractor 's 
licence , would they be allowed to bid on jobs? That's the 
question. 

Mr. Chairman: As far as your first two ... 

Mrs. Watson: The transitory , 29 (1), the people -
that Section 29( 1) now applies , I believe, to contractors 
who do not have qualified journeymen on staff or they 
are not. 

Now, you will if you will give them a temporary work
ing licence, will it be a contractor 's licence? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman ... ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: .. . I think that is the reason I have 



been bringing up this licence and contractmg licence. 
and I think it should be \·ery spec ific in this instance. 

Mr. Chairman: Do ! understand. Mrs. Watson. are 
you satisfied with changing the word "permit .. to "I i
cence" in these two instances. or do you wish it to be 
augmented further? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I'm qu ite satisfied 
now. but I think that I've got a better understanding. I 
think that they understand why I have been bringing up 
the question. but it will involve changing it in 291 1 1 and 
12 1. It will require changing 17. and it n:ay require look
ing at the Interpretation Section again . whether you 
should lea\'e just bare •·Jicence" in or not. 

Mr. Chairman: Well. we can consider the three 
changes in 29111 and 12 1 and 17121 as typographical 
errors. changing the permit to licence. if that is accept
able. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman. it would be 
dangerous to do that. because we may have to read 
them through and change other sections, with respect. 

Mr. Chairman: Do you wish to bring this back? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes, Mr. Chairman . 

Mr. Chairman: That's 29!11 and 12 1. 17121 , and the 
Interpretation Section. 

Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A ques
tion of a general nature, with respect to Clause 29, to 
either witness. Have we a situation in Whitehorse that 
we might have a, say, a contractor who is very know
ledgeable in the field of contracting, now, you know him, 
who possibly would not be able to qualify under the 
examination, and I'm talking here strictly of a written 
examination because, possibly , of the fact that he might 
not be able to speak English or understand English that 
well. 

So you see any difficulty here? I realize you 've got a 
clause her e where you can issue a temporary licence on 
an on-going basis, but how do you feel about that? Is 
there any problem in that situation? 

Mr. Toews: I believe this would be something that 
would have to be- I can appreciate what you 're facing, 
is the potential of a person, due to a, well , some people 
have a hang-up against exams and, that they, this would 
have to be settled with the Education Department as far 
as whether they would accept a physical examination of 
their work and a verbal questionnaire to see whether 
they would give them a certificate as a qualified electri
cian based on this. 

I personally would have no quarrel with it, but the 
thing that would, to me, be a problem would be that I 
don't feel that we should be doing this for everyone who 
is operating a business at present because I have seen, 
personally, some of them that can 't troubleshoot an 
electric hot water heater and tell you what 's wrong with 
it. And yet, there's others that are working and they can 
take it and go right into a very complicated system and 
tell you what the problem is. So I wouldn't want to be the 
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one that would have to dec ide. because personalit ies 
could come into it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: I have a further question with re
spect to the bond ing. On r age 9. Clause 1412 1. is actually 
bonding a licence? And when. I think somebody said 
that a I icence is fr ee. well I guess i t's r eall y not free 
because you do in fact have to deposit some sort of a 
bond and I'm wondering again here. just a reaction 
from the bu siness world. i f this is going to be acceptable 
or if you think that people, for instance. being in busi
ness for 15 or 20 years in Wh itehorse. a recognized busi
ness . if that isn 't bond enough? 

I don't know if there is any diff icul ty in it and I person
ally can't see why a business operating for that length of 
time wou ld not accept putt ing up a bond, but there could 
well be and maybe Mr. Hardvick might have a com
ment on that. 

Mr. Hardvick: I th ink it varies upon the individual 
himself. his own character . as a ru le, primarily, and 
what work he's bidding in. Insurance people have a 
policy of bonding now and are very careful on the indi
vidual character 's responsibil ities, many details as re
liability on issuing a bond. 

For a number of year s. bonds also related to the fi· 
nancial r esponsibi l ity , if a per son can back up his re
sponsibility to pur chase a bond . With the amount - lax 
as the situation is here and everyth ing is out of control , 
this al so has a bear ing on it , to a cer tain degree. But the 
insurance people - losses they've suffered ; they're 
looking at th ings in a ver y hard point of view these days, 
which has an effect. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Just supplementary to that - th is 
might be a question to the Minister of Local Govern
ment or to the Chief Inspector. Are there any other 
jurisdictions in Canada where you have to put up th is 
kind of bond or surety to get a licence? 

Certainly, if you're contracting and you 're bidding on 
a contract , you have to put up a bid deposit and a per
formance bond, and this is quite acceptable. But I was 
just r eally wondering if there are any other jur isdic
tions where, in order to get a licence you have to put this 
kind of surety up? Can you give me an example of that? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, I can't really 
cite an example, but we can look it up in detail , but it is 
my understanding that this is a normal form found 
throughout the provinces. 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I don't think we 
should leave the impression that the, that the licence 
that has to be got by a qualified tradesman is, is free. 
Contractors, the general building, I looked up the 
Schedule of Fees under Commissioner's Order. The 
general building contractor's is $300.00. A specified 
trade or subcontractor, which includes carpenter, elec-
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trician . plumber . painter . drywaller. landscaper. or 
mason. is $100.00 per year throughout the Terr itory. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke : Mr. Chairman. are you talking of a 
business licence that is issued in the Territory? Like 
Ter ritorJal ... That is not duplicated in the Ci ty of 
Whitehorse. In other words. you need one in the City of 
Whitehor se and if you worked outside of the Ci ty of 
Whitehorse you need one for the Territor y. Correct? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: That is correct. 

Mr. Lengerke: Okay. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. F'leming. 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Chairman. maybe l am a 
little confused. but I don' t think so. I think we're trying 
to turn someth ing completely loose again and have all 
sorts of people just running and getting licences to oper
ate an electrical trade. 

I see here that this. in 1712 l. that's called now a permit 
which somebody suggested should be a I icence possibly 
now. And of course. somebody said before that the li
cence would cost no money. but the contractor s' ! icence 
would cost money. and then l see at the bottom that in 
this Ordinance th is permit. or we should say. I suppose. 
licence now. would be " no such temporary licence wi ll 
be valid for any period in excess of three months" is the 
way we read. 

Now. I'm just wondering what the person is going to 
do in three months with a I icence to contract what. or 
where. in three months. I just don't quite see that. You 
know, what is the good of the licence to start with a three 
months' temporary licence or whatever. I could see al so 
tha t there is going to be many people walk into the 
country that just have a red seal and say they could start 
contracting again, as we have in our other contracting 
situations in the Territory, and I don't think it's very 
good the way it is today. 

I would like some protection for the contractors in this 
Territory. I don 't think this is going to help them at all . 
the way it's written out here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, this is not in
tended to deal with contractors; it's quali fied trades
men who are qual ified somewhere else and come to the 
Terri tory and need a qualif ication here. Then they get 
i t , if they have the outside qualifications. It's not in
tended to be controlling contractor s. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. F'leming? 

Mr. Fleming : Yes. Mr. Chairman, in other words. 
we are speaking about a temporary working permit for 
a journeyman to work for a contractor. then we are not 
speaking of licences again , are we? We're speaking of a 
permit, because th at person should not have to buy a 
licence, say a hundred dollars or two hundred dollars to 
go to work for a journeyman - or for a licensed contrac
tor, under the Electrical Ordinance? 

1'; t i<P :l8J 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Correct. Mr. Chair man. 

Mr. Flem ing: It's sort of mixed up. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: Yes. th is here is basically covers the 
we require that a certain number of journeymen under 
the Trades Qualification Ordinance. th ere is to be a 
ratio of a cer tain number of journeymen to the appren
tices. 

Now. when a large project is in progr ess. you have 
quite a few people coming in from outside. What this is 
going to require. as we have our apprentices to work 
under these particular j ourneymen. we have to basi
cally recognize their quali fica tions. so that they get 
credit for the time that they spend workir.g under the 
instructions of this particular person. 

Now these jobs can last a short period. or can be quite 
extensive. If they are extensive. they they will have to 
write the local examinat ion if they do not have the red 
seal. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Flem ing? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Chairman. I'm ver y clear 
now. I think the Ordinance is okay. i f we don't start 
discussing contractors in it and licences. The way it's 
written here is okay but if it refer·s in any way to any 
contracting. which we have been listening to for the last 
while. then that's a different qu estion entirely. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I just about 
forgot what l wanted to ask . but it concerns the Territor
ial Government. At the present time. the go,·ernment 
has a policy where heavy duty mechanics installing 
generating units in the field, and hooking up those units 
to the existing wiring and so on. under th is Ordinance 
here. people would not be qualified to do th is type of 
work. Is the Government prepared to change their pol
icy and comply with this Ord inance? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews'1 

Mr. Toews: I 'm not sure. I 'm having my battles with 
electrical permits alone with the Federal Government. 
but this is something different. But as far as large 
generators. and mechancis doing the installation. it is 
beyond the scope of this particular Ordinance. 

There's a clause that exempts th e Publ ic Util ities. 
N.C.P.C .. Yukon Electric . from the requirements of 
qualified people as far as our qualif ications. 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger'1 

Mr. Berger : I'm talking about the Territorial Go,·
ernment. I myself installed about four units in different 
c<tmps. I'm not an electrician , I 'm a heavy duty 
mechanic by trade. and I was also r equ ired to hook 
those units onto ex ist ing fields in the camps. and install 
wiring and everything. and it was all done under my job 
descript ion. 



Now, is the Territorial Government going to comply 
with this Ordinance, and change the job descriptions? 

Mr.Chairman: Mr. Toews.? 

Mr. Toews: I'm hoping to accomplish that by clause 
-Section 18 , the definition of an employer. It's someone 
that is not operating as a contractor. I have basically 
included this section to cover Territorial Government, 
C.N.T. which have electricians on their staff that do 
routine maintenance, repairs and additions, and in
stead of requiring a permit for every project and this 
sort of thing, we are requiring a log which they submit to 
us and then we check it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Well my point then would be that then 
the whole job description of the Territorial Government 
has to be changed, in order to comply with this Ordi
nance. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, are we to un
derstand that a heavy duty mechanic 's job description 
in the Government of the Yukon Territory, includes the 
installation of generators? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: That is correct, Mr. Chairman. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: We'll have to look at job de
scriptions, Mr. Chairman. The point that Mr. Toews 
makes is absolutely correct. 

Under Section 18 , our viewing of the way it will read is 
that you could only do that work under the supervision of 
a qualified journeyman, who would have to be on the 
job. Every month , that qualified journeyman, the Gov
ernment of the Yukon, would submit to our Chief Elec
trical Inspector, the work that he has supervised in the 
preceding months,just to make sure that none of what 
you say is going on is going on in the future, after the 
Ordinance is passed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, isn'tSection 19, public 
utilities, and this would be installation of generators, 
wouldn't that apply to some of the job description? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman, the Territor
ial Government is not a public utility. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, but isn't a generator, 
it doesn't say a public utility company necessarily, it's 
the installation of generators for a public utility. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, as we see it, that 
is correct. Section 18 would apply to the case in point 
that is a person doing electrical work on an on-going 
basis for his own purposes. Electrical utility sections 
are designed for a completely different situation. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
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Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I have a question 
again on 29( 1 ). ''Notwithstanding section 17 for a period 
of two years after coming into force", would the Minis
ter of Local Government explain that , why, just for two 
years? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews. 

Mr. Toews: The reason that we put two years is that 
under the present Trades Qualification Ordinance. a 
person has to show four years experience before he is 
entitled to write the examination. I surveyed every per
son that is presently working as an electrical contractor 
that is not qualified and within this two year frame, he 
will have sufficient time to entitle him to write. l 'm not 
trying to kill anybody or anybody's business presently. 
And this two years was to g ive them sufficient time that 
they would have to write that exam. This additional .. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 

Mr. Berger: This is just a general question that just 
struck me. Like it says here, on 18(2), "Notwithstanding 
subsection (1), no employer may order or permit any 
apprentice or other employee or person, not being Qual
ified Journeymen, to perform electr ical work to which 
this Ordinance applies ... " Now would this Ordinance 
also apply to electrical work on moving equipment? 

Mr. Toews: It would apply to reinstallation of live 
equipment, yes. On anything but a public utilities pro
ject. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the definition 
section mentions, gives a description of what is covered 
under the expression "electrical installation". 

Mr. Chairman: We shall recess until1:30 If the wit
nesses could appear at that time, it would be much 
appreciated. 

(RECESS J 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 
There's a Motion before Committee now, moved by 

Mr. McKinnon, seconded by Mrs. Whyard, that Bill 
Number 2, entitled "Electrical Protection Ordinance" 
be amended as follows: 

"Owner" when referring to electrical equipment or 
property or wiring, includes the lessee, occupant and 
person in charge of premises. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Lessee. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall this amendment to Clause 2 
carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Page 3, Section 4 - shall Clause 2 

( 

( ) 



carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson·) 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. as far as I'm con
cerned. Clause 2 can carry. but I think we should give 
the administration the opportu nit y to make some 
amendments to the definition of licence and electrical 
contractors. after they review it. 

Mr. Chairman: I'll stand Clause 2. 

Mrs. Watson: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Page 3. Section 4. Moved by Mr. 
McKinnon. seconded by Mrs. Whyard. that Bill Number 
2. entitled "Electrical Protection Ordinance·· be 
amended as follows: 

"4. 1 1 1 An inspector may 
t a 1 place in operation or stop or cause to be placed in 

operation or stopped. any electrical equipment that is 
being inspected. 

1 b 1 Except in the case of a single family dwelling unit. 
require the preparation and production to him of plans 
and specifications of the installation of the electrical 
equipment and wiring that is satisfactory to him. 

1 c 1 Remove or cause to be removed any obstruction 
that may prevent a thorough inspection. 

121 An inspector may at any reasonable time enter 
and examine any premises other than a dwelling. and 
the electrical equipment or wiring in or upon such pre
mises. 

131 An inspector may. with consent of the owner. at 
any reasonable time . enter and examine any dwelling 
and the electrical equipment and wiring in or upon such 
dwelling. 

( 4 1 Where an inspector shows a Justice of the Peace 
that he has reasonable cause to believe and does believe 
that an electrical installation in a dwelling is a hazard to 
the occupants of the dwelling, or to the public generally, 
or that an offence contrary to this Ordinance has been 
committed therein, the Justice of the Peace may issue a 
warrant authorizing and requiring the inspector to 
enter and examine the dwelling at such time or times as 
may be stated in the warrant. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have a question 
under 4( 1 l (b). You don't have to have, you don't have to 
have the plans and specifications when it's a single fam
ily dwelling, right? Under clause (bl. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews. 

Mr. Toews: That is correct. The plans for a single 
family dwelling normally are never followed by the per
son doing the wiring because there is usually some con
venient, or more convenient method discovered while 
he's doing the installations, so it's impossible to hold a 
person to a plan on a single family dwell ing. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
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Mrs. Watson: Bu t there is no requirement to ha ve 
the plan. 

Mr. Toews: No. there is no requirement. 

Mrs. Watson: Well. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: This brings up something that has dis
turbed me and I had to go to this section once before and 
it's under the Engineering Professions Ordinance. I 
think that we'd better look at it. Section 21(2 1, it says no 
plans or specification for any works or buildings or for 
any alterations thereto. involving the safety of the pub
! ic. or costing over the sum of $20,000.00 shall be passed, 
approved or accepted by any Municipality, and so on. 
without the stamp of a registered professional engineer 
or architect. 

Now. would that apply in this instance in 
municipalities, and most of our homes are over $20,000. 
You see, this was put in in 1958 when most of the bu ild
ings over $20,000 would be commercial buildings. But 
now we're looking at homes and what that says, that any 
home in a Municipality valued at over $20,000 is going to 
have to have a plans and specifications. signed by an 
engineer or an architect. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews. 

Mr. Toews: I wasn't aware of th is clause and I guess 
I'd be the worst offender because I draw. I th ink. half of 
the plans for people who are going to do their wiring 
because they haven't got anybody else that can tell 
them how to do it. and I guess I've been the worst offen
der as far as tha t particular Ordinance would be con
cerned. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Well, Mr. Chairman, that has to be 
changed, that piece of legislation, doesn't it? I've had , I 
had an occasion at one time, that's why I know it's there. 
I was looking at some sections for someone and it's quite 
glaring. And because it was in '58, it needs to be up
dated. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: I'm sure the matter will be 
looked into, Mr. Chairman, we can't have the Honoura
ble Member breaking the law. 

Mrs. Watson: No. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: I'm not- I'm just drawing it to your 
attention and then you have, you have to make the 
amendment to conform with what we're saying in here. 

Mr. Chairman: Will the Government take that un
dertaking? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Certainly, we will. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 



Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I just- Mrs. 
Watson is absolutely right, but I am aware in other 
jur isdictions, the engineering profession has amended 
their legislation, or have r equested that the ir legislation 
be amended to up that figure considerably and I th ink . 
I'm sure we're going to heed the advice of Mrs. Watson. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the amendments carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 4 carry as amended? 
Clause 5, there was some qu estion th e Members had 

regarding Clause 5 that they might now wish to question 
the witnesses regarding. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, my questions were 
answered this morning when we went through the dif
ferent .. 

Mr. Toews: Shall I read the section in the Electrical 
Code that I was referring to? It 's in our scope of the 
Electrical Code. 

Mrs. Watson: I would certainly be happy to hear it. 

Mr. Toews: Rule 2022, Renovation of Existing In
s tallations. 

"The Inspection Department may require such 
changes as may be necessary to be made to existing 
installations where through hard usage, wear and tear, 
or as the result of alterations or extensions, dangerous 
conditions have developed." 

Mr. Chairman: Page 6. Shall Clause 5 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed . 

Mr. Chairman: There was some question regarding 
Clause 7 on Page 5. We were requiring some informa
tion, requirements for mortgages. Do we have that in
formation? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: The note I have is that there was 
a question about plans for private homes, you were 
asked by the Honourable Member from Kluane .. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that is in this sect ion , 
we have a lready taken it up. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 7 rarry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Clause 8. Moved by Mr. McKinnon , 
seconded by Mrs. Whyard, that Bill Number 2, entitled 
"Electrical Protection Ordinance" be amended as fol
lows : 8(1 ). 

' 'An inspector may issue in respect of any premises, a 
permit entitling the holder of the permit to install , alter 
or extend any electrical equ ipment or wiring on such 

premises. '' 
Mrs. Watson') 
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Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I asked for that 
amendment and I 'm quite satisfied. I think it's been 
c larified , in respect of any premises, the permit. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the amendment carry? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs . Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: On Page Six, subsection (three I , "An 
inspector shall not issue a permit except when owner or 
an electr ical contractor holds a valid and subsisting 
licence issued pursuant to Section 14" . I don 't think 
you've taken into consideration you may be issuing a 
permanent permit to someone who holds a temporary 
work permit or licence, have we? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: In Section 17, which is the point 
in question , the person who now has a contractor's li
cence, is working as an electrical contractor, will get a 
temporary working licence to enable him to work, so the 
wording here would probably fi t. 

It's the contractor or the owner of the premises who 
gets this permit. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , ... 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: ... it's taken care of as far as Section 17 
is concerned, but what about the transitory section in 
29(2) where these people can still continue for two years 
to perform electrical contracting? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: One of the changes - what we 
are saying , we are looking at it to see how it will apply to 
the total res t of the Ordinance . If Section 29( 1 l were 
changed to read " issue a temporary licence", it would 
take care of the point that the Honourable Member 
raises. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: A subsisting licence issued pursuant 
to Section 14 or 29? Section 29? You would have to add it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon : Well, Mr. Chairman, that 's 
just the point that we made, that we didn't want to do the 
amendments until we looked through the whole of the 
Ordinance and saw how one applied to the other and 
brought them all in on the licensing provisions. 

Mr. Chairman: Page 8, Section 12. 
Mr. Legal Advisor? 

) 
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Mr. Legal Advisor: Cou ld I explain the meaning of 
the redraft, Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Pardon ? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Could I explain the meaning of 
the redraft? 

Mr. Chairman: This redraft now .. . 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Of Section 12. yes , Mr. Chair
man. 

Mr. Chairman : I 'll read it first then . 
Moved by Mr. McKinnon , seconded by Mrs. Whyard , 

that Bill Number Two entitled "Electrical Protection 
Ordinance" be amended as follows: 12(1 1: 

··An inspector may -
.. (a I disapprove in whole or in part any plans and 

specifications submitted to the inspector. 
"(bl require the a lteration of any electr ical equip

ment or wiring, 
"( c, requ ire the cutting off of the supply of electrical 

energy to any electrica l equipment or wiring, or 
· • < d 1 refuse to permit the installation or operation of 

any electrical equipment or wiring." 
Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, on reworking 
this sect ion, it appeared that we had left out the substan
tive power of the inspector to make these orders on 
which the appeal would arise. So we reworked the sec
tion, using almost identical language, but first of all 
saying the inspector may do these things and then work
ing in the power of appeal against this to avoid repeti
tion in 2, 3 and 4. 

Mr. Chairman: I will comple te the reading of the 
amendment : 

" (2 ) an order or decision of an inspector pursuant to 
subsect ion (1) may be made orally or in writing, but if 
made orally shall be confirmed by a written order by the 
inspector. 

"(3 l Any person aggrieved by an order or decision 
pursuant to subsection (1) may appeal the order or de
cision to the Chief Inspector by forwarding by regis
tered mail a statement in writing on the matter com
plained of to the Chief Inspector within 21 days after the 
notification to him of the order or decision appealed, or 
with in such further time as the Chief Inspector may 
a llow . 

" ( 4) The Chief Inspector may amend, vary or revoke 
any order or decision appealed from under subsection 
(1), and his decision is final and binding." 

Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, these ten days which 
has been changed to 21 days, and I think Mr. Berger 
from Klondike brought that up. I'm wondering whether 
he 's satisfied with that time? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger : I am , Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the amendment to Clause 12 
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carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 12 carry as amended? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Moved by Mr. McKinnon, seconded 
by Mrs. Whyard, that Bill Number Two entitled Electri
cal Protection Ordinance be amended as follows: 
"16(1 ) Where an inspector finds that any electrical in
stallations or equipment supplied and installed that 
does not comply with the Ordinance, the inspector shall 
forthwith send notice of the defective work to the con
tractor and owner and must therein specify a time of not 
less than three days wherein the defects shall be re
medied." 

Does the amendment to Clause 16 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 16 carry as amended? 

Some Members : Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Subsection 4. Moved by Mr. McKin
non , seconded by Mrs. Whyard, that Bill Number Two 
entitled Electrical Protection Ordinance be amended as 
follows: '' 16(4) A notice pursuant to subsection (1) shall 
be deemed to have been received by the contractor or 
the owner seven days a fter such notice has been mailed 
to the contractor or owner. " 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: May I speak up? The original 
request which was made by the Honourable Member 
from Mayo was to change the "or" to "and" so that the 
notice will be sent to both the contractor and the owner. 

That immediately ra ised a problem because one of 
the two might be in New Zealand or could be far away. 
So, we 've got to deem a notice to have been served so it 
was necessary to add in Section 4 so that the work can 
proceed and be done, notwithstanding tha t one of the 
two might be absent. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall this amendment to Clause 16 
carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 16 carry as amended? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Thirteen. Moved by Mr. McKinnon , 
seconded by Mrs . Whyard, that Bill Number Two enti
tled Electrical Protection Ordinance be amended as 
follows: " 19(1) An employee of a recognized electric, 
power or communications public utilities may do elec
trical work connected with the installation, alteration, 
repair or maintenance of equ ipment necessary for the 
operation of the public utility which has been assigned 



to him as part of his duties by the publ ic uti lity ... 
Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman. it's nothing to do with 
19( 11. l got it marked on 18( 3 1 that the administration 
promised to look into this wording of this Section 3. 
where every employer shall, on or before the lOth day 
each month , send or deliver to the Chief Inspector a 
report with all electrical work done on his premises. I 
think l brought up the question. what are his premises if 
he works on somebody else's property? They're not 
considered his premises. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger, perhaps we could deal 
with that: we will first deal with this motion before the 
House. 

Shall the amendment to Clause 19 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Cha irman: Shall Clause 19 carry as amended? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: That point was discussed. and it 
turned out that the employer we're talking about in 
these three subsections is a person like the Territorial 
Government who employs qualified people to do elec
trical work. so that the only work that is permissible to 
be done is work on the premises of the employer him
self. He can't contract out: he is not a contractor. 

The wording we would recommend shou ld stand . 

Mr. Berger: I'm more confused. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further questions regarding 
that, Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Well , I'm afraid. Mr. Chairman, l can't 
ask any more than l asked already because even the 
answer Mr. Legal Advisor brought forward confuses 
me even more. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman ... ? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Legal Advisor? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: ... there are three or four firms, 
including the City of Whitehorse and the Territorial 
Government, and such people, who do. in fact, employ 
or should employ qualified people. Under this Ordi
nance, they are only permitted to do work on their own 
premises. 

There 's a different class of person and electrical con
tractor who works on other people's premises, but only 
for one specific purpose. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Toews? 

Mr. Toews: This is what we would normally class as 
a maintenance electr ician. Department of Public 
Works have them, Territorial Government has them , 
C.N. has one. 1 believe the City has one. And they do 
maintenance. minor alterations to electrical systems, 
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and what we want to know is what they are doing. be
cause some of these could be in an off1ce building where 
the public has access to. so that the wiring that they do is 
maintained in a safe. operable condition. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. 
Page 17. moved by Mr. McKinnon. seconded by Mrs. 

Whyard. that Bill Number 2 entitled Electrical Protec
tion Ordinance be amended as follows: "29( 4 1 A person 
who is aggrieved by the refusal of a temporary working 
permit pursuant to subsection ( 11 or a condition im
posed under special permit pursuant to sub (2 1 or the 
current cancellation of a temporary working permit 
pursuant to subsection ( 3 1. may appeal the decision and 
the provisions of subsections 15(31, 141 and (51 apply 
mutatis mutandis." 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr . Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: That Section will possibly be 
reworked also. depending on whether we change the 
temporary working permits to licences throughout the 
whole of the Ordinance. 

As I understand it. that is the only major question that 
is sought in the Ordinance at this time. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Then Clause 29 will also be sttod 
over . 

Any further questions for the witnesses? 
Thank you very much for helping us today. The wit

nesses are excused. 
We will proceed with Bill Number 11 . An Ordinance to 

Amend the Public Service Staff Relations Ordinance. 
"One: Subsection 7( 11 of the Public Service Staff Re· 

lations Ordinance is repealed and the following substi
tuted therefor: 

"Seven (11: 

1 Reads Clause 7 J 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if at 
this time, l note that in the explanatory note that the 
Yukon Public Service Staff Relations Board has 
changed its constitution for administrative purposes. 
Could we just have a brief, perhaps, explanation of just 
what this change really is? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Chairman. There is just a 
minor change in the Ordinance, in order to allow the 
Yukon Public Service Staff Relations Board, wh ich is in 
actuality the Federal Public Service Staff Relations 
Board, to allow them to appoint members at large. 
rather than from particular interest groups. 

What we are doing is attempting to co-ordinate our 
legislation with theirs , so the only basic change is the 
appointment of members to the Board - that's the only 
change. There's no real administrative changes, that's 
what they mean. It's that they are trying to attempt to 
change the Board so they can get members at large, so 
that they are not representing special int:>rests of the 
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employer or employee organizations. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on 
Clause I? 

Are there any amendments to Clause I? Shall Clause 1 
car ry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Two: "Subsections 12(1 I and (2 1 of 
the Public Service Staff Relations Ordinance are re · 
pealed and the following substituted therefor: 

"Twelve ( 11: 

1Reads Clause 12 1' ' 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairm an, maybe somebody 
could answer why the Public Service Staff Relations 
Board has taken to appointing members from at large 
rather than to have representation from the special in
terests, like employee and employer groups. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, the change was 
originally made by the Government of Canada to the 
Canadian Public Service Staff Relations Board on the 
recommendation of the then Chairman of the Board, 
Mr. Finkleman. who is also our Chairman. He wrote a 
special report , including this as one of his recommenda
tions to the Government of Canada. 

The recommendation was accepted and became law 
in Canada, I th ink last May or June. He, in his report he 
gave the reasons for it and it was based on his experi
ence of 18 year s as a labour relations chairman in On
tario, plus 8 or 9 years' ser vice in Canada . In his report 
he said that he had found, over the years, that vice
chairmen and members who were appointed to repres
ent either the employer side or the employee side nor
mally voted with the group in arriving at their dec i
s ions . 

But the political pressures arising from origins some
times required them to say " I disagree", without giving 
any reasons in order the politics of the s ituation could be 
preserved. 

The special interest people had become dissatisfied 
wi th this method of operation and they preferred to be 
appointed to represent the public at large and not in any 
way to be connected with their former friends either on 
the employer side or the employee side . This didn't 
impinge in any way on the honesty of the decisions, but 
sometimes required them to make certain face-saving 
gestures. 

He analyzed the totality of the decisions from the two 
Boards and he found that it was less than 1% that this 
had in fact occurred and recommended that the system 
be changed. That fulltime members be appointed, who 
would in fact come from the fields of labour, depending 
on whether it was employer or employee, a balance 
would be kept in the appointing of them so that they 
would cut the imbilical cord and no longer feel any 
requirement politically in their decisions to bow their 
heads towards their former friends. 

All of the members of the board concurred with this 
recommendation and the situation now is in Canada 
that people are appointed, full-time people. There used 
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to be 8 headed by a Chairman, to which there was some 
deputy chairman added , I couldn't recall exactly how 
many the members are now. I imagine it's somewhat 
the same. The Board is satisfied that this system works 
excellently and the members who have been appointed 
are representative, in fact , of life on either side. The 
former Chairman of the Public Services Alliance, Mr. 
Claude Edwards , who was president at the time that 
this Ordinance first came into force, is now a full-time 
member. An Assistant Deputy Minister from the 
Treasury Board has become a full -time member, in 
addition to the ordina ry members, and the Chairman, 
Mr. Finkleman , has retired very recently and been suc
ceeded by Mr. Howard Brown, who is now holding office 
as our Chairman, who succeeded him. 

The sections are requested by the Chairman of the 
Board , concurred in by the members from both sides 
and I thought perhaps, the Minister might have men
tioned that the Public Service Alliance has concurred in 
these changes and given us a letter to that effect. So that 
the sections come well recommended. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 2 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Unfortunately, there is no Procla
mation Clause involved with this Bill , so I would hope 
that the Government will take notice of this and bring in 
their necessary provisions so that we can pass this Bill. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr. Chairman, it can come into 
force on assent. If there's no Proclamation Clause, it 
comes into force upon assent. 

Mr. Chairman: Then why has this not been the pro
cedure up until now? We have always had such a Proc
lamation Clause in every Bill that has come before this 
Committee. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Mr . Chairman, always is a loud 
word. It was a decision of the Government to have this 
clause and make it clear in every drafted Bill and I just 
forgot to put it in in this instance. 

Mr. Chairman: That's what I meant. 
The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and 

with the advice and consent of the Council of the said 
Territory, enacts as follows: An Ordinance to Amend 
the Public Service and Staff Relations Ordinance. 

Shall the title carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall I repor t to the Bill without 
amendment. 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Bill Number 12, An Ordinance to 
Amend the Municipal Ordinance. 

I. "Subsection 100(1 ) of the Municipal Ordinance is 
amended by adding thereto the following new parag
raph:" 

r Reads Clause lOOfl 11 



Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, this comes as a 
specific request from the City of Dawson, and a general 
request from the Association of Yukon Municipalities. 

As I have told Honourable Members, we have been 
working at amendments, housekeeping amendments to 
the Municipal Ordinance over the last six months, and 
we've got about 15 sections now where we have been 
working with specific municipalities, and with the As
sociation of Yukon Municipalities, to bring all these 
amendments up-to-date at a certam time , hopefully 
next spring. 

However, it has been pointed out by the City of Daw
son and the Association of Yukon Municipalities, that 
this is one amendment that is needed immediately for a 
specific purpose. Without thi s amendment, Mr. Chair
man, the City Council of Dawson is unable to protect 
their historic buildings in areas of Dawson and specifi
cally Heritage Canada has committed $200,000.00 tore
build the Miner's Rest Hotel , known as the Yukon Hotel , 
provided though that protective legislation is passed 
first. 

If the Municipal Ordinance is not amended until the 
1977 Spring Session, the City will be unable to provide 
the necessary zoning by-law in time for the 1977 con
struction season. The effects of such a delay, Mr. 
Chairman , would mean that Heritage Canada may re
vise their priorities, and the Miner's Rest Hotel restora
tion may be set back for sever! years, or could even be 
possibly cancelled. 

Also , Mr. Chairman, the provision of single accom
modations would suffer a severe set-back, as the Herit
age Canada proposal includes up to 7 self-contained 
apartment units for single people. Valuable free adver
tising would also be lost to Dawson by excluding the 
Miner 's Rest Hotel project from the Heritage Canada 
Newsletter, an undesirable development may proceed 
if City Council is now unable to effecti vely control any 
development. 

We thought, and our legal advice was, that the City 
Councils probably had the authority under the Munici
pal Ordinance to pass such by-laws, but they wanted, 
and Heritage Canada wanted it to be made specifically 
clear and outlined in the Ordinance that they did have 
the power and the responsibility. 

As Honourable Members always know, that I 'm just 
putty in the hands, Mr . Chairman, of the duly elected 
Members of the Municipal Councils and L.I.D. Boards, 
so we went about fulfilling their request at this time , Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to 
advise and thank the Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre for acting so promptly on the 
City of Dawson's request, and as he pointed out so accu
rately, it was very, very important to the City of Dawson 
that this amendment would be forthcoming in this Ses
sion. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I have really no great objections to the 
amendment, Mr. Chairman, but wat I am concerned 
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about is I think you are opening certain avenues for 
other municipalities to start pl aying a game of dicta
tion. 

What I would like is further clarification on specially 
designated zones. I am not questioning the concern the 
Minister may have as to the City of Dawson. What I am 
concerned about is the Town of Faro and maybe the City 
of Whitehorse. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. we could have 
tried to be more specific, you know. We could have gone 
into the area of protecting buildings, areas or zones of 
specific historical interest, that kind of nature. But we 
thought, and this is my philosophy. that duly elected 
Members of Municipal Councils, should have the au
thority of being able to control within their 
Municipalities, areas and zones. whether they're histor
ical sites or for other purposes. 

I'm just of the opinion that if they are not doing what 
they should be doing as elected Members, they only 
serve for two years, and they're going to hear about it 
from the people who hold the ultimate weapon. the vote 
at the ballot boxes. 

So you know, you might say it's a philosophy of give 
them enough rope and they 'll hang themselves. I only 
wish that the Federal Government would treat the 
Members of this House exactly the same way as we 
treat the duly elected Members at the Municipal and 
L.I.D. levels, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall ? 

Mr. McCall: TheM inister is not answering my ques
tion. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I didn't intend to. 

Mr. McCall: I would like the Minister to be a little 
more specific, because specially designated zone, could 
mean many things. 

I would like some further clarification, Mr. Chair
man . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I don't know 
how specific the Honourable Member wants me to be. 
The amendment, it says regulating and control the ar
chitectural design of buildings, and describing materi
als to be used to the exterior of buildings in a specially 
designated zone. · 

A specially designated zonein the area of Dawson 
would be the historical area downtown, that is going to 
be renovated and part of the core under the master plan 
of National Hisotric Sites. The City of Dawson wants 
enabling legislation to be able to control the facades of 
the buildings in that area, so that they come to the theme 
of 1898. 

We think that other cities should be able to do exactly 
the same thing as many cities in B.C. and other areas of 
Canada have designated specific areas for specific pur
poses, whether they happen to be a shopping mall where 
no traffic is allowed; whether they be a German motif , 
as one of the areas in the Kootenays now has. That's 
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their prerogative. and if they ha ve the mandate of the 
people that they represent. then they shou ld have the 
ability and the empowering legislation to be able to do 
those types of things within the boundaries of 
mun icipalities. 

But we could have made it entirely specific and re
str ictive. just for historic zones and specified historical 
areas. and we thought that that isn't what this govern
ment would like to do. We would like to give them the 
powers as broad as possible . under normal municipal 
powers. and this is a normal municipal power in all the 
Municipal Acts that we were able to examine. Mr. 
Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I'm certa inly not op
posing this. However . aren't all zones specially desig
nated zones, residential zones, commercial zones and so 
on : ar en't they all specially designated zones? 

Hon. Mr. McKinuon: Mr. Chairman ... 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon ? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Probably if the City of Dawson 
had a zoning bylaw at this time, this would not be neces
sary. They do not. There has been a zoning bylaw under 
discussion by the City of Dawson for several years now. 
as far as that - at least this is one of the areas where 
they haven't passed a zoning bylaw because of certain 
controversies that have happened in that municipal 
area. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Well, a further question. This r eally 
shouldn't even be asked in here , the mechanics of it, so 
they have a specially designated zone . Do they then pass 
regulations specifying the architecture that they would 
like to have, and would they be under the bylaw, or as 
part of the bylaw? 

Mr. Legal Advisor: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I was just going to try 
and clarify that, and certainly a very good example of 
this situation is a town in British Columbia - Kimber
ley, B.C., where in fact they did this by a protective 
Ordinance and were working on a special zone, and the 
architectural style was protected and everybody 
adheres to it and it's a very workable arrangement. 

Mr. Chairman: And their Ocktoberfest was qu ite 
del ightful. 

Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I'm not aligning 
myself with that final remark, Mr. Chairman, but I 
would like to say that this project of restorate is cer
tainly a very encouraging one from my Department's 
point of view, because the proposal i s that senior citi
zens will be included as possible tenants for this recon
structed hotel. This is one of our objectives as well , it 

r ece ives our approbations. 

Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger ? 
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Mr. Berger: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. I didn't 
want to say this. but the Honourable Minister of Health 
and Welfare left herself wide open. I wonder if she in
cluded the senior citizens in the restoration program 
too , but for the information of all the Members there 's a 
master plan from Historic Sites laying here in the lib
rary. and I th ink it 's a very good laid out plan and I think 
it would be very valuable for all Members to take a look 
at it and see what the plan is for Dawson City. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Are you going to let me reply, 
Mr. Chairman? 

Mr. Chairman : If you so wish, Mrs. Whyard. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. I would merely 
state that most senior citizens are in better shape than I 
am . 

Mr. Chairman: That's a reply? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Yes. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I 'm not like you 
sa id . unduly concerned about this amendment. l just 
hope ... 

Mr. Chairman: You just seem to have a lot to say 
about it. 

Mr. McCall: ... the other Members realize this, that 
it does not come back to haunt us. because when we talk 
about restorat ions in var ious municipalities I just hope 
we don' t get into a political football field about the Faro 
Hotel being restored, and I think we are already in
volved in enough pol itical football fields now. 

So. like I say. Mr. Chairman, I just hope it doesn 't 
come back to haunt the Minister. 

Mr. Chairman: If that was a football field, I 'm sure 
it wou ldn't be fair because one team wou ld be on the 
downhill and the other on the uphill at all times. 

Mr. McCall: Slightly at an angle. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I wasn't going to be
labour this subject at all because I have no fault with the 
problem they have at Dawson now. This does cure it, 
although I do also have some misgiv ings, especially 
designated zone, myself. 

This i s a municipality , but I am worrying about the 
future, when there will be an L.J.D. included in the same 
thing and we will have the problem, because if they talk 
about it now at the meetings , making everything the 
same, and I hope we all won't have to live in little green 
houses or something. 



I would wonder why they couldn't specify the zones, 
as the Member from Klondike has sa id, there is now a 
pretty good set-up map in the country, and couldn't they 
somehow designate the areas a little bit closer than this, 
so that they don 't interfere with the actual lives of other 
people? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, we're looking 
at amendments to the Municipal Ordinance. We at
tempt to make them as broad as the municipal authority 
can hope to operate under, and give them all the room 
for manoeuvering and flexibility we possibly can. 

If it happens that at some time the L.I.D.s - and this 
is the way Municipal Ordinances are changed - to the 
involvement of the particular city and the Association of 
Yukon Municipalities, and the requests coming forward 
from them , total consultation , for total involvement, 
and we generally leave them with the Ordinance as they 
want it amended in any specific circumstances. 

The same would hold true from the L.I .D.s and we 
have presently working exactly the same type of review 
of the L.I.D. Ordinances, with the consultation of the 
L.I.D.s , to the extent where we will be meeting all of the 
L.I.D. people on December 4th to take a look at the 
amendments that they want, and the way that we'll 
think about bringing them forward to the Assembly. 

You can be assured that when these amendments 
come through they will have been done with the total 
involvement and consultation of the people involved 
with the amendments, and this was done in this matter, 
and once again it is the philosophy of this government, 
it's going to continue to be as long as I represent the 
Department of Local Government, that when they ask 
for amending legislation that they get it in the broadest 
terms possible that they 've asked for. 

Mr. Chairman: I hope, Mr . McKinnon , that that in
cludes the Band Councils. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, do you want to 
go on in the consultation process of the Band Councils as 
the Department of Local Government does, because we 
could spend the rest of the afternoon on that basis also. 
And I'm not ready to sit here and let it be said that we 
are not in the consultative involvement process with 
every segment of Yukon society in anything that comes 
up for deliberation in the Department of Local Govern
ment. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman. In view of what the 
Minister has just said, I'm hoping that the Minister can 
keep this House advised as to the amendments that are 
forthcoming as to the Municipal Ordinance so that we 
know and will be able to separate the municipal bylaws 
that the municipality can't pass themselves as to nor
mal amendments to the Municipal Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman : Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I think the Honourable 
Member from Pelly has made a very good point and I 
don 't, certainly don 't, completely agree with the Minis-
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ter of Local Government. 
I think you have to go through the consultive process. 

but I do think in any structure of government there is a 
local government situation and there also is a provincial 
or territorial government situat ion. I don't think we can 
abrogate the responsibilities that we have at the Ter
ritorial level down to a local government level . particu
larly when at the Territorial level you are responsible 
for the funding to provide the th ings that are going to be 
done and the decisions that are going to be made at a 
local level and I think there comes a lime when you 
really have to look at the situation. 

I agree that there has to be consultation but I still feel 
very, very strongly that we do have a Territorial level of 
government and we must maintain the responsibilities 
of that Territorial level of government and not hand 
them over when they do not involve local matters. And I 
can cite you again the Liquor Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: I was going to do it for you. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I was beginning to wonder. Mr. 
Cha irman .. . 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: ... what Ordinance we were 
discussing at th is t ime. 

Mr. Chairman: Any fur ther debate on Clause P 

Some Members : Clear. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 1 carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: I now take great delight in reading 
the Proclamation Clause: ( 2 l This Ordinance shall 
come into force on assent. 

Shall this clause carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: The Commissioner of the Yukon 
Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the 
Council of the sa id Territory enacts as follows: An Ordi
nance to Amend the Municipal Ordinance. 

Shall the title carry? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Shall the Bill carry without 
amendment? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: I would now refer to Motion 27. 
Twenty-seven: it has been moved by Mr. Lengerke that 
regulations be developed with respect to a domestic 
animal herd law which can be enforced under the provi
sions of the Highways or Pounds Ordinance and that 
these regulations be introduced by the next Session of 
the Yukon Legislative Assembly. · 

Mr. Lengerke? ) 
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Mr. Lengerke: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. I think I 
spoke briefly to the Motion the other day and I recall the 
Ilonourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre 
saying something that he thought that they had tried 
and attempted to suggest fencing in Yukon on a number 
of occasions and this would be an almost impossible 
si tuation. 

By bringing in this Motion. Mr. Chairman. I don't 
want to suggest for one minute th<~t fencing is the only 
solution. because it is not. It would be very nice if we 
could. in fact. legislate areas to be fenced and certainly 
that is one of the ways. but I believe there is other ways 
to control problems of domestic animals and particu
larly cattle and horses running at large. 

I would like to suggest that a control or designated 
grazing area is something that we should consider and 
is very feasib le in Yukon. I th ink that areas can be 
marked and that animals can be controlled by strategic 
placement of salt licks. supplementary feeding areas. a 
development of good watering holes. watering sites. 

In other words. I'm saying that controlled ranging is 
possible and I think we're approaching that position in 
Yukon. We 're getting a number of animals that we 
should be seriously looking at that kind of control. 

I don 't know if the Honourable Members are aware or 
not. but there is assistance available via the Federal 
Government. in this case, that they will come in, they 
will take an area, if granted by the Territorial Govern
ment. in this case it's still Federal Government lands. it 
would be in this case. and they can develop it into a 
community pasture and this has been a very successful 
program. 

The community pasture, once it's built. and this is 
why I 'm talking about fencing, I'm talking about the 
installation of water supply, corrals, the rest of it. The 
community pasture is turned over to a local group, to a 
pasture organization made up of people who are cer
tainly active in having cattle or horses for a living or a 
supplementary living. 

I think that this is the approach that I would like to 
use. 

There's one other thing that I suggest, is that maybe 
we should examine the question of liability and provide 
some direction in that regard, in the case of where a 
truck or car goes down the road and does hit an animal. 
I 've seen it where, nine out of ten times. it 's not only the 
damage that the person has to pay for to his vehicle but 
he is slapped with a bill to pay for some highly pedigreed 
or blue-ribbon animal later on, and I don't think this is 
right. I think we should certainly instill , someplace 
along the line, that the people that do have these herds 
should be responsible as well, even if it is open range. 
they should know where the heck they are and try to 
control them to some degree. 

I think with that, I will await some comments from the 
other Members, but as I said, I know there is an ap
proach to be used here. I know that assistance is availa
ble if we ask for it, and I would at least like to see us go 
that far at this point in time. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes , Mr. Chairman. I know that we do 
have the responsibility towards the public at large and 
on the highways and everywhere else. but as far as 
coming up with a herd law in the Yukon Territory - I 
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would say it would be impossible. 
In the first place. the owner of the horse that gets a 

grazing lease could not fence a - feasibly fence the 
lease. because it would not be something that people 
couldn't tear down legally and walk through it. because 
they don't have the right. 

Even speaking. as the Member has said. of a watering 
hole. I don't believe he could even have the water to the 
horses under the present system in the Yukon Te:Titory 
without getting a permit from the Water Board to use 
that. I think it's quite a problem really to do anything. 

I would say . though. that he's absolutely right on some 
of the controls. and I would I ike to see possibly some 
control as to how the people that own the animals do 
take ca re of them. and I'm speaking of horses that are 
hobbled on the road. with hobbles on their f ront feet. and 
sometimes their back feet. so they don't go away and 
move from one area to another. so as these people who 
are aga in usually guides and so forth and so on don't 
have a problem looking after them. 

I think this is absolutely deplorable. I do not see any 
re<~son for th is at all. They have a business in the Yukon 
Terr itory and they are making money from that busi
ness: I think it's their responsibility to look after th eir 
horses and not have them in a position where they get on 
the highway and they can't move off it even if they wish 
to get out of the way of a vehicle. 

This is one of the areas where I think we probably 
could do something for it. and as the Member has said. 
there are other points too that could be looked into the 
laws. Now. that's my only comment. I couldn't vote for 
the Motion now because there is no way, I don't think. it 
possibly could be put into effect in the government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor ? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes. Mr. Chairman. I just can't 
recall the year. but some years ago this House consi
dered the question of herd law and open range and we 
had quite a debate on the subject. I must say. but when 
all the arguments were in and the whole question had 
been debated. we felt that the open range concept was 
quite acceptable in the Terr itory, and I for one sti ll do. 

You know, there are some very peculiar problems 
here, and it's nice to talk about community pastures and 
these idealistic suggestions made by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Riverdale. but they just don't 
necessarily exist. We don't have the nutritional value in 
the feed in th is country. and that means that an animal. 
of course, perhaps has to range a little further for feed 
than he wou ld in a normal circumstance. say in Alberta 
or in British Columbia and places in the sou th and the 
east. 

The very scattered nature of this feed decrees that 
horses and so forth have to range that much further to 
get the amount of feed it takes to keep them going, 
particularly in the summer months. You know. there's a 
lot of feed can be found in the rights-of-way along the 
highways of the Yukon. 

Now, occasionally horses will present a problem: 
they will get on the road: but I haven't seen that much of 
a problem i f a person is driving with any kind of care 
and attention at all. Horses, as a rule, in the daytime 
don't cause too much of a problem. At night, this could 
be a different situation in the summertime. 

But we have found in any event that open range by 



signing areas where horses have been pastured or 
browsing or grazing, the signing has done the trick. I 
don't see that this is as great a problem as the Honoura-
ble Member makes it. · 

I did have a question, Mr. Chairman, of the Honoura
ble Member. I can only guess that someone is lobbying 
with the Member for this type of legislation, or else- I 
just can't- I would like to ask him who is having diffi
culty with this and, you know, what group is it that 
wants this done, and for what reason? 

Mr. Lengerke: I'll be glad to answer that. I could tell 
you .. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Excuse me. 

Mr. Chairman: I was merely acknowledging you 
were recognized by the Chair, Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you , Mr. Chairman, I 'm 
sorry, I should have waited until I was. 

I would just like to say to the Honourable Member 
from Watson Lake that nobody is lobbying me for this. 
It's something that I've seen in the probably in the short 
time that I've been in Yukon, I've seen a number of 
instances where it's occurred. It's happened to me per
sonally. I've certainly been associated with the trans
portation industry and I know from that that there are a 
lot of problems. If there's any lobbying, that would be 
where it would come from, but it's not m the form of a 
direct lobby. 

I know what damages have been done to vehicles and 
transportation facilities. I know the number of people 
that we have involved in that industry in Yukon and I 
know a specific area that they operate in and I think 
there should be some better controls imposed. 

I also think that by initiating what I've suggested 
through a strategic type of community pasture prog
ram, that we can also encourage what you say, I have to 
disagree that we do not have the feed available and 
some of the reproduction capability of grasses and what 
have you and I don't want to get into that, but we do, we 
have a very good potential. And I think via this prog
ram, over the years, we could show and indicate to 
people engaged in this business that in fact it is very 
possible and it is viable in a small way. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I was in
terested in the Honourable Member's remarks. You 
know, when we discussed this the last time, nobody 
could really tell us the ratio between domestic animals 
being, causing a problem and causing accidents on the 
highways over non-domestic animals like moose and 
caribou. So, no matter which way, I believe it was de
termined that the wildlife caused more problem indeed 
than the horses did in the long run, but I'm just wonder
ing ifthe Honourable Member has any figures along this 
line to present. 

You know, I certainly don't think that we've reached 
that stage of development as yet in the Yukon Territory, 
where we ought to impose restrictive laws, with respect 
to this - Pounds laws. I still go for the open range 
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concept. To try and encourage, in any way, fencing is 
just impractical , it's too costly, and, you know, I don't 
see that this thing is working the hardship at this point in 
time, but I think if you are interested in looking at this 
subject further, then perhaps the people in the business, 
the people who own horses should be consulted and see if 
they can come up with any ideas that might alleviate the 
situation referred to by the Honourable Member. 

I don't think that this House should give direction to 
the Administration at this time to bring in a Pounds 
Ordinance. I think that's something that the- or regu
lations to the Pounds Ordinance. I think that's some
thing that the Administration ought to do on their own 
and perhaps if they felt this to be a problem in their 
view, they could consult with the outfitters and whoever 
else is involved in the thing and see if they couldn't work 
out a solution to whatever problem, if indeed it does 
exist. 

Mr. Chairman: Did you have a reply to that Mr. 
Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, thank you. 
I just, again, want Honourable Members to under

stand that I'm not saying that the open range system is 
going to be abandoned completely by this, but I think 
that we have, we can have open range grazing in desig
nated areas as well , and the Honourable Member from 
Watson Lake suggested and mentioned that already to 
date we have had successful, or success with some sign
ing in the areas. Certainly there is a liability situation 
there, where if it is signed that the driver or the motorist 
certainly recognizes that he 's going through an area 
where there are going to be livestock at large. I think 
this is fine. 

But I'd like to see us take a little better look at where 
those designated areas are and do something within 
those range areas as well to try and control the animals 
on the highway. I 've suggested that it can be done by 
cooperative action or approach by the use of, as I've 
said, controlled feeding areas. You don't have to have 
animals running all over the highway. 

I've lived across the pra iries where there are no 
fences as well in many areas, and the cattle don 't run all 
over the road, because they stay out on the pastures that 
provides them some feed and provides them some 
water and provides them some salt and I think this is the 
kind of thing I 'd like to see used. 

I'm not looking for any great hard, fast regulations 
here at this time, but I wanted to open this up because I 
want to see what direction we are going. I think it 's time 
we did look at it realistically. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: I don't want to spend too much time on 
this particular Motion. I differ slightly, Mr. Chairman , 
from the Honourable Member from Watson Lake. I 
don't believe in overdramatization of a problem that is 
before us. 

I think that a lot of consideration should be given to 
this Motion, when one considers that we live in our own 
little communities, we have our own little fences to keep 
whatever protected, and here we are, we are consider
ing free range or open range for small groups of animals 
that should be behind fences, just like dogs are, just like 
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cats are and children are. 
I don't think the Honourable Member has spent 

enough time on the trucking routes, and seen some of 
these horses, or what's left of them after a truck has hit 
it. I think this is what the Member that moved the Mo
tion was concerned about, and I'm concerned about it, 
because I travel the trucking routes I think a little more 
regularly than the Honourable Member from Watson 
Lake. 

Mr. Chairman: In a Cordova, Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Well, that's beside the point, Mr. 
Chairman. What I am concerned about is that I have 
seen many herds of horses on the Klondike Highway, 
and in some areas on the Campbell Highway , who are 
just not receptive to traffic , and I think they should be 
restricted in some way to wherethey can be controlled. I 
don 't think free range is necessary in this modern day 
and age with all the traffic we have, and I think the 
Honourable Member should spend a little bit of time 
between stops between Whitehorse and Watson, he may 
realize what the mover of the Motion is talking about. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Mr. Chairman, just in reply. You 
know, I'm wondering if the Honourable Member has 
ever read the Pounds Ordinance, or indeed if he knows 
what he is talking about. 

For instance, in the Pounds Ordinance already, and I 
don 't know whether the Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse Riverdale raised the question, there is pro
vision whereby the owner of any animal that creates an 
accident is liable for that . 

Except I'm not too clear now as to whether he is liable 
within a signed area, that 's the alternate deal. 

What I'm saying is that the Pounds Ordinance, at this 
point in time, seems to me in my mind to be sufficient to 
deal with the whole Pounds question, and that's my 
feeling on the matter, and unless someone can convince 
me with some facts , that this is not the case, then I 
certainly won't be supporting the Motion. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Mr. Chairman, I think the Honourable 
Member is having difficulty understanding what he is 
talking about. 

Mr. Chairman: Order , please. 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman, I'm not going to be 
supporting the Motion. I don't think that a lot of us 
realize the complete ramifications of the Motion. The 
Motion is rather unclear too, and it was partly my- I 
take some responsibility because I did second the Mo
tion without going over it properly. 

The Motion does not say whether the regulation shall 
be justr brought back for review , or whether it should be 
brought into force, and we are looking at- we are just 
mentioning the Pounds Ordinance, not even knowing 
whether there will be provision under the Pounds Ordi
nance to bring in regulations, and we mention a High
ways Ordinance, so I don't think much can be gained at 
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all by passing this Motion, and we could do a great deal 
of harm by the implications that the Motion may have. 

Now, I am thinking about the people who have to keep 
horses for a living, it 's part of their business. There is a 
danger. I have driven the highways in the Yukon Territ
ory, I'm sure just as long as anyoue, and I realize the 
danger is involved when you have cattle and horses on 
the road. But the narrowest experience I personally 
have ever had was with two moose on the road. 

You know , if you get rid of one problem , we are not 
going to be able to get someone to fence in the moose, 
and if you ever drive down the Haines Road, there is a 
great problem with moose. You can see as many as a 
dozen moose on that road during the wintertime, on any 
trip to Haines, and it's quite - you know, it's not just 
that you see one every once in a while. 

There is a danger , but on the other hand by correcting 
one problem, you correct another. Now these people, 
there are people who have to have horses as part of their 
living. Every outfitter has to have five horses per hunter 
under our regulations, under the Game Ordinance. 

Now, he has to be able to feed these horses. Now, if any 
of you have read the agricultural report that was pre
pared or commissioned by this Government and it was 
tabled in this House approximately a year ago, the 
comments by that gentleman were that the grazing 
leases in the Territory are completely inadequate. I 
believe right now they can get 40 acres per horse. He 
recommender! rloubling thatand also making some pro
vision for long-term leases and provisions so that they 
can cultivate part of it to grow their own feed. 

Now until we can give some opportunity to people who 
have to have horses for a living, how can you cut them 
right off and say you can't have open range, you 've got 
to keep them some place? 

Now if you have 10, 15, 20 horses, look at the acreage 
you are going to have to have, and look at the fencing 
you are going to have to do. And then, you still have your 
problem of your wild animals. There is the danger on 
our highways, but I would like to see this Motion today 
defeated . Let's not even consider passing this Motion, 
unless we are sure of what it is going to say. 

But by the same token, that doesn 't stop the administ
ration from taking this whole question into considera
tion, and maybe coming forward - not necessarily 
coming forward with a proposed policy, but to at least 
identify the problems. But I think it would be just a very 
horrible thing, if this were passed without giving the 
people who would really be affected by this, whose 
livelihoods depend on this , an opportunity to appear as 
witnesses. 

If there's any possibility of it going through, these 
people must have an opportunity to tell us why, what we 
would be doing to them. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I think we 
should realize that the Motion that Mr. 

Lengerke made has not even been supported by himself, 
because he hasn't referred once in his remarks to 
changing or developing regulations. All he's been sug
gesting is that we should look into certain aspects of 
feeding and putting salt out to attract beasts away from 
the road. 

But I have some knowledge of the difficulties that the 



people that have owned gra1ing leases. or lease grazing 
leases have. and that is with fencing. They are not per
mitted to fence under the present Federal regula! ions. 
and even if they were permitted to. it wou ldn't be an 
economic thing for them to do. 

The only way we could do any fencing. to keep horses 
off the highways. is if the Territorial Government itself 
would fence the highways to keep the animals off. be
cause it would be completely impractical for people that 
own horses to do that fencing. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger : Yes. Mr. Chairman. I particularly 
want to rise on this thing. because I ·m \'Cry biased. I was 
involved in an accident and I ha\'e maybe had more 
experience. but I would like to suggest to some of the 
Members that on the Mayo Road. there's a number of 
different outfitters in there. and there is one particular 
man. I don't know who it is or so. it's around Pelly. He 
seems to have a feeding shack there. and he's very 
successful in keeping the animals off the road, while 
other ones further south. there's animals roaming all 
over the highway. especially at night. and I'm not too 
much conerned in daytime. but especially at night time 
those animals are a real hazard to anybody going down 
the road. at 30 miles an hour or 60 miles an hour. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Yes. Mr. Chairman. I just wanted a 
moment, because I have something to clarify. We some
times are misunderstood. sometimes with the public. I 
think Mr. Berger was misunderstood last year when 
something came up in the Game Ordinance and I find 
myself in that same position now when I spoke of hobbl
ing horses and control and law. 

Sometimes the game guides misunderstand in this 
House. and I wanted it very clear that none of the Mem
bers misunderstand me today , and also that they will 
hear, you know, that it is not my intent to really run 
down some game guides, because I am absolutely for 
them. 

But it's the hobbling of horses that I have seen, I want 
this clarified, was not right in the Yukon Territory, due 
to the fact that our road goes into B.C., out of B.C. and so 
forth and so on, and the problem I was speaking of was 
actually around this area. I haven't seen a Yukoner yet 
doing this, although it may be. 

However, I would like to see some control there, pos
sibly something that the Humane Society really could 
act upon. 

The fencing matter that the Honourable Member 
from Mayo has brought up was very interesting, be
cause I thought about it. but the Member from Kluane 
shot down all my thoughts as soon as she started speak
ing of the moose that was going to be in the Territory, 
because that would finish that off too. The environmen
talists would say no way could you fence the Alaska 
Highway, because the moose can't go from here to there 
and so forth and so on. 

lt might be a fine idea if the moose were over there 
and the horses were over there and we were over there, 
and some other people were over here and we had the 
fence down the highway, everything would be wonder
ful. 

Page 394 

Mr. Chairman: Ms. Millard? 

Ms. Millard? Mr. Chairman. just a procedural 
thing. I'm wondering if Mrs. Watson has withdrawn her 
seconding and should we be discussing this Motion? 

Mr. Chairman: She can still second the Motion and 
\'Ole otherwise. so we are okay. 

Yes. Mr. McKinnon. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. I thought this 
might come up at this session. so I asked our Game 
Director to give some thoughts on the problem, and he 
was quite succinct in the comments that he came back 
with. He made the point that only the Honourable 
Member from Mayo has alluded to. 

He says the 99.9 per cent of the land in the Yukon is 
under Federal jurisdiction, as well as a similar high 
percentage of the grazing and agricultural leases. the 
most effective step in solving the problem would be a 
change in the Territorial Lands Act, making it mandat
ory for grazing and agricultural leases to be fenced in. 

I'm personally of the opinion that the Federal Gov
ernment has the power at present to charge horse own
ers that use Crown Lands other than their grazing 
leases, but of course, as usual, they make no use of it. So 
after going through the different regulations in the 
Pounds Ordinance. the Director makes the, the Acting 
Director makes the point that as a long term goal, we 
should continue to put pressure on Ottawa to amend the 
Lands Act, requiring all grazing and agricultural 
fenced leases to be fenced in. 

I sent back a little note to him, I don't know whether 
you 're supposed to read these things in the Legislature 
or not , but in any rate I said I agree the Feds gave the 
damn agricul tural and grazing leases, I suggest that 
they should not be responsible for enforcing or changing 
it as it can be enforced. 

It's just another one of those areas where we have 
nothing to do with the granting of the lands, the grazing, 
the agricultural leases, that was all done by another 
federal government and now guess who's going to pay 
the bill. You guessed it, the taxpayer who comes under 
the jurisdiction of the Government of the Yukon and I 
just don't think that we should be prepared to commit 
that person to have to spend that amount of money , or 
also have to arrange all of our Ordinances, whether they 
be the Pounds Ordinance or any other Ordinance, and 
have to hire inspectors, put in community pastures and 
the whole bit, to take care of a problem that was none of 
our making. We had nothing to do with it, but it 's the 
total whole ball of wax. Here is the problem, now you 
guys solve it. 

It comes in every area and I think that we should have 
quid pro quo, if they want to give us the surface rights of 
all the Cornw Land in the Yukon Territory, we'd be 
prepared to accept our responsibility and make sure 
that the horses and the livestock don't run at large. It's 
not our problem, it wasn't created by us and we should, 
if we're going anything, it should be forcing the people 
responsible to take the responsibility for it and that's the 
Federal Government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: I don't agree with the Honourable 
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Minister and I don't agree with the approach there all 
the way. Regardless of whose land, whose problem , it is 
our problem and I think we should be showing some 
responsibility on how to get at it. 

But I suggest to you this , and I apologise to the House, 
I really do, I apologise to the seconder of the Motion. I'm 
reading the Motion myself and usually I'm the fellow 
that has such a long Motion I'm trying to put everything 
in it, that I have to agree with the Honourable Member 
from Mayo, that it certainly isn't the Motion that I 
should have presented, because what I was really trying 
to get at was that I would like the regulations, and I 
know there are regulations, there are regulations under 
the Pounds Ordinance, there are regulations under the 
Brands Ordinance, right now, that do, in fact, sup
posedly regulate the herd Jaw. 

I would like to see those enforced a little better and if 
they can't be enforced , as the Honourable Member, or 
the Honourable Minister says, there could be problems. 
I also.talked to the Game Director , Games Branch Di
rector , and he did tell me the problem with respect to 
Crown Land. 

As I say , I apologise for the Motion, it should have 
certainly worded a little differently. I would like to see, 
as a result of the discussion here today though , that 
some direction be given that we do in fact , take some 
future action with respect to looking at the possibility of 
creating what I 've indicated earlier, some community 
pastures , because I know I've talked to people in the 
livestock business, I've talked to outfitters. They run 
the ir horses, they use them for three or four months of 
the year and they let them run wild. I think they would 
a lso like to have somewhere were they could put them, 
where somebody could look after them and where 
they'rl be under control. 

Others maybe don 't want that , maybe they're quite 
happy the way theyare. But I would like to see us give 
some direction to possibly looking at the development of 
a couple of community pastures or one at least in 
Yukon. As I indicated earlier, it 's 100% financing by the 
Federal Government in this case. They are turned over 
then to the Territorial Government or turned over to a 
pasture committee who can run it on a local basis. It 
provides for a very minimal amount of employment but 
you can involve some Indian people or whatever you 
wanted to. But! think it's an area that we should look at. 

I certainly don't want to look at it in a negative factor , 
I think we're getting to the point where we'd better start 
controlling this. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, after that elegant 
speech I was wonderingif the mover of that Motion 
would be prepared to withdraw it at this time. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr.Chairman , certainly , I think that 
that would be quite in order. I would withdraw it with the 
permission of the seconder. I will withdraw the Motion 
and hopefully, a!; I say, maybe a new Motion could come 
forth . 

Mr. Chairman: Do we have the consensus of the 
House that this Motion is withdrawn? 
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Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: I would just like to add one com
ment. In perusal of this Motion, I went back to the 
Pounds Ordinance, and I see by definition "animal" 
means, and one of the definitions here is "neat cattle". 
Does that mean they're tidy, that they create no public 
menace. 

Mr. Legal Advisor: No, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I must though, with 
the Honourable Member from Riverdale who spoke 
about the community pasture concept, and I'm not 
familiar with it at all, but it has been suggested to me by 
various people in the areas on the Mayo Road on the 
~Iaska Highway North and in my own community, and 
~t would be very beneficial if we could try to get some 
mformation from the administration or wherever we 
coul~ get it from , on the community pasture concept, 
and 1t would be most informative anyway, so that we 
could at least know what we are talking about. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, the community 
pasture concept is gone into in quite some detail in the 
Peak Report. He suggests that this is one of the ans
wers for the problems of horses and livestock running at 
large. 

I'm just opposed, particularly at this point in time, 
with the economic restraints that are upon us , that any 
area that the Y.T.G. goes into to rectify the problem, 
whether it be community pasture, whether it be en
forcement of the Brands Ordinance, the Pounds Ordi
nance, the Area Development Ordinance, is going to 
cost money. There is just no way around it, and I just get 
so darned mad, and I don't mind admitting it and I 
think I've been cons istent on this , on a problem' that is 
n?t o.f our making, that we always have to spend Ter
ntonal taxpayers ' dollars to resolve, and this is exactly 
the same instance. 

If we have to enforce further the Pounds Ordinance 
the Area Development Ordinance, or the Brands Ordi~ 
nance, or go into the community pasture business, let 
no-one fool himself, it's going to cost money to the Ter
ritorial taxpayers. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 

Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Honourable 
Minister answered part of my - some of what I wanted 
to say about the Peak Report, but there is also the Ag
ricultural Association - I believe it was four or five 
years ago, it was intended to start a community pas
ture, and they ran into a slight problem of funding, and I 
believe the funding required at that time was something 
in the neighbourhood of $360,000.00. 

Mr. Chairman: Committee will now recess. 

(RECESS ) 

Mr. Chairman: I now call this Committee to order. 



Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman. just prior to the 
break, we were discussing the possibilities of commun
ity pastures in relation to herd laws and the rest of it. 
and I have a Motion that I would like to introduce at this 
time, if it's in order. 

Mr. Chairman : Yes, it is. 

Mr. Lengerke: It 's moved by myself, and seconded 
by Mr. Berger , Member from Kloudike. that the Ter
ritorial Government. through the Mimster of Indian Af
fairs , immediately apply to the Federal Government 
Department of Regional Economic Expansion, 
P.F.R.A. Division. to have an investigation carried out 
with respect to the feasibility of developing one or two 
community pastures in the Yukon in the near future. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: What is P.F.R.A.? 

Mr. Lengerke: P.F.R.A. is Prairie Farm Rehabili
tation Administration. 

Mr. Chairman: Could I have that aga in. Mr. 
Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: P.F.R.A. stands for Prairie Farm 
Rehabilitation Administration. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you. 

Mr. Lengerke: It 's a divison of the Department of 
Regional Economic Expansion and they 're not only just 
confined to the Prairies, but they have done work in 
British Columbia , and northern parts of the Prov ince as 
well. 

Mr. Chairman: It 's been moved by Mr. Lengerke, 
seconded by Mr. Berger, that the Territorial Govern
ment, through the Minister of Indian Affairs, im
mediately apply to the Federal Government, Depart
ment of Regional Economic Expansion , P .F .R.A. Divi
sion, to have an investigation carried out with respect to 
the feasibility of developing one or two community pas
tures in Yukon in the near future. 

Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. The Mo
tion is pretty explicit, and I would like to just again 
mention this service is available, if in fact they would 
recognize that our application is bona fide. I don't know 
how they would react , they might say well what's up 
there in the Yukon? 

I think certainly a bit of background information 
would have to be provided with respect to the recom
mendations in the Peak Report and some of the prob
lems we're having. I think with that kind of direction to 
them, that they would well agree to sending one or two of 
their people who are well versed in the development of 
pastures, and regrassing programs, to come take a look 
and provide the administration, the Government of the 
Yukon, with costing, the area that they so thought would 
be a good area, and if they in fact would be able to give 
us the assistance in the actual development, to the 100% 
that I have said. 
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Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman : Mr. Mcintyre? 

Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman. are we going to dis
cuss this Motion now? 

Mr. Chairman : Yes. 

Mr. Mcintyre: I would just I ike to point out that I 
believe that DREE is not operated in the Yukon Territ
ory. and while I won't oppose the Motion, I don't believe 
that it will get anywhere. 

The Department of Indian Affairs and Northern De
velopment take it upon themselves to control develop
ment in the Yukon, and I don't think there's any chance 
that they will permit DREE to operate here. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: The Honourable Member from Mayo 
has a point, and I would like to say this, that that 's why 
I ·m suggesting it through the Minister of Indian Affairs. 

There is funding that is conveyed to that Department 
via DREE, via the Ministry of State, other Departments 
actually do provide assistance, but it comes through the 
Minister of Indian Affairs. I would hope that probably 
the Minister of Local Government might be able to add l'l 
little more to it. 

I think he realizes that there is funding that is directed 
from other Departments via the Department of North
ern Affairs to Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, the Govern
ment of the Yukon has looked at the possibility of some 
DREE type programs coming into Yukon. I think the 
prohibition of times past when the Federal Government 
was reluctant to see another Department of govern
ment also involved in development programs come into 
northern Canada, is perhaps fading. 

The Government of Yukon has one overriding consid
eration in any type of Federal Government agency that 
sticks its nose into the Yukon, and that is the Yukon 
Government is going to have control absolutely of what 
they perform and what they do in the boundaries of the 
Yukon. 

There are agreements now signed, particularly one 
with the Government of Manitoba that I've examined 
quite thoroughly, between DREE and the government. 
It's by far the best type of agreement that I have seen 
DREE and a provincial government develop up to this 
point in time. It does provide monies in certain areas, 
particularly in northern programs, and also in other 
areas, Mr. Chairman, but it also has that money com
pletely and absolutely and the direction of the program 
under the control of the provincial authorities. 

If the Yukon gets into a DREE type program with an 
agency, other than the Department of Indian Affairs 
and Northern Development at this time, I think it would 
be fair to say that those controls and our ability to dic
tate the terms of the agreement, would be uppermost in 
our mind before such an agreement was brought to this 
Assembly for it to be ratified by other members of the 
Legislature. So, it wouldn't be fair to say that no work 
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has taken place in this area because there are prelimi
nary type of looks into the areas where we could be 
helped in future in Yukon by having various agencies of 
government which are not presently active in Yukon, 
eventually active grours. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman. I'd like to thank the 
Honourable Minister for his comments. I again would 
just like to probably conclude th is by saying that this 
Motion is very simple in nature really , it 's just asking if 
somebody would consider doing an investigation . It is 
not binding us to anything and they're going to come 
back and they 're going to outline the cond itions by 
which they might do it, or in fact, they might well come 
back and tell us that they cannot even operate in Yukon 
even if it's through the Minister of Northern Affairs. So 
with that I certainly conclude discussion on this. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. Lengerke, 
seconded by Mr. Berger, that the Territorial Govern
ment, through the Minister of Indian Affairs ,j im
mediately apply to the Federal Government. Depart
ment of Regional Economic Expansion. P .F .R.A. Divi
sion , to have an investigation carried out with respect to 
the feasibility of developing one or two community pas
tures in Yukon in the near future. 

All those in favour? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Contrary? 
The Motion is carried. 

1M otion carried J 

Motion Number 6. 
Moved by Mrs. Watson, seconded by Mr. Lengerke, 

that the Government of Yukon amend policy directive 
2/2 , titled ' ·Access to Files" to accommodate the 
specific needs of the Members of the Legislative As
sembly who need to have access to Government infor
mation in order to carry out their responsibilities as the 
elected representatives of the Yukon people: and that 
the amendments be tabled in this House during the life 
of this Session. 

Mrs. Watson. 

Mrs. Watson: Yes , Mr. Chairman, I don't know 
whether I 'm going to be speaking just to the Motion or 
will I be allowed to speak to the amended Motion? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, this has given me a lot 
of problems over the past little while, and I spoke to it 
before in the Committee. Now, how does one go about 
getting information if you want to do some research or if 
you want to do a thorough investigation of a problem. 

You may not want to go through normal channels, 
through the Executive Committee to get the informa-
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tion for you. You should. it should be the right of every 
Member of this Legislature to work independently and 
to know what channels to use without having to go 
through the normal Executive structuce of the Gov
ernment. 

The Pol icy Directive 2/ 112, I don't think , is clear 
enough in the direction. and the fact that the procedure 
all hinges on the fact that you could get the information 
through the Executive Committee Member or tl trough 
the Commissioner himself. And it shouldn 't be that way. 
Thert! should be other people designated. 

I'm not looking for personal information, I 'm not look
ing for the opportunity to get my hands on files. That 's 
not the point of th is Motion at all . I 'm looking to have the 
government look at this whole business of what infor 
mation should be available to Members of the Assembly 
and how do they go about getting this infol'mation. · 

I have several instances, I've gone to members of the 
Clerk 's staff . Now, they don 't know and I'm not going to 
push them into making a decision without having some 
clear-cut guidelines for them. I 'm not going to get any 
employees into trouble and that's why I think it's so very 
important and I think that some Members are taking 
this Motion rather lightly. And to me it 's one of the most 
important things that we should be considering . 

The suggestion was made that maybe we shou ld have 
a research person on staff. Well, that 's fine, that's great 
if we could afford it. But. I think we are. while we are at 
the level that we're at right now. I think we're still going 
to have to be prepared to do an awful lot of our research. 
and if you 're going to do r esearch. how do you get infor 
mation? 

I am not proposing to tell the government how to wr ite 
the guidelines, but I would certainly like to see them 
rev iew the guidelines, the procedure directive, and that 
one per son or that certain persons are designated as 
those people that provide the information, that Mem
bers of the Legislature may need, if it's classified in
formation , fine. 

If we can 't have it, that 's fine. I am not going to argue 
about it: in fact, I wouldn 't be asking for classified 
information, I'm sure. But there's a lot of background 
information that must be available within fi les on which 
legislation was drafted in years gone past. 

I know there have been studies done by Territorial 
Government money that are not available to Members 
of the Legislature, yet really should be, because there's 
some very important information in some of these 
studies. These things should be made available to us. 
and - I 'm just asking for the guidelines, the procedure 
directives , to be reviewed to bring them up-to-date. to 
let us operate in a meaningful way as Members of this 
Legislature and as representatives of our constituents. 

Mr. Chairman: Yes , Mrs. Watson. I should read the 
amendment actually to which you are now speaking: 

Moved by Mr. Lengerke, seconded by Mr. Fleming. 
that Motion Number Six be amended by deleting the 
word " number 2/2" in line 1 and replacing it with 
" number 2/ 112", and by deleting the words ··access to 
files" in line 2 and replacing the item with "procedure 
directive" . And that thP. words "by clearl y defining 
guidelines and what classes of information are avai la
ble to M .L.A .s and to designate persons within govern
ment, in addition to the Executive Committee, who can 
assist and from whom information can be obtained" be 



added directly after the word "people" in line 5. 
Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: I wonder if the Chair or the 
Honourable Member could read the total Motion as it 
will read with the amendments? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes . 
. "Th~t the gov_ernment of the Yukon amend policy 

directive 2/112 titled 'Procedure Directive' to accom
modate the specific needs of the Members of the Legis
lative _Assembl_y, ~ho need to have access to govern
":le.n~ _mformatwn m order to carry out their respon
Sibilities as the elected representatives of the Yukon 
people, and that the amendments be tabled in this House 
during the life of this Seession - ". I'm sorry ... 

" ... to government information in order to carry out 
their responsibilities as the elected representatives of 
the Yukon people, by clearly defining guidelines and 
what classes of information are available to M.L.A.s, 
a!"l~ to designate persons within the government, in ad
ditiOn to the Executive Committee, who can assist and 
from whom information can be obtained, and that the 
amendments be tabled in this House during the life of 
this Session ." 

It's not deleted -

Mrs. Watson: "And that the amendments be tabled 
during the life of this Session" is not partofthat Motion. 

Mr . Chairman: It has not been deleted in the 
amendment. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman , a further 
amendment, if that was the intent of the amendment as 
I understood it was, and that's why I wanted it read in 
total. There's no objection to the amendment and the 
Motion as it reads, with that exception, at least for the 
elected Member of the Executive Committee. 

I don't think it's just humanly possible with the de
mands that are presently being placed on our time with 
constant Leg. Prog. and ExCom meetings for us to do 
any kind of a job on delivering those kinds of amend
me~ts requir~d a~ this Session of the Legislature, Mr. 
Chairman - It's JUSt logistics. 

Mr. Chairman: Well, I will entertain a sub
amendment. I don't think ... 

Mr. Lengerke: If that wasn't cleared up it should 
have been , because certainly the amendment was to 
delete "and that the amendments be tabled in this 
House during the life of this Session" would not be in
cluded. 

Mr. Chairman: Someone-else will have to move that 
sub-amendment, because it's your amendment. 

The sub-amendment is moved by Mr. Taylor, sec
onded by Mr. McCall, that the words "that the amend
ments be tabled in this House during the life of this 
Session" be deleted. 

Is there any further debate on the sub-amendment? 
Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 
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Mr. Chairman: On the sub-amendment. 

Mrs. Watson: Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: All those in favour? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Contrary? 
The sub-amendment is carried. The Motion as 

amended now reads: 
"That the Government of the Yukon amend policy 

directive number 2/112, titled 'Procedure Directive' to 
accommodate the epecific needs of the Members of the 
Legislative Assembly, who need to have access to gov
e~n.":l~nt information in order to carry out their respon
Sibilities as the elected representatives of the Yukon 
people , by clearly defining guidelines and what classes 
of information are available to M.L.A.s and to designate 
persons within the government in addition to the Execu
tive Committee, who can assist and from whom infor
mation can be obtained. " 

Is there any further debate on the amendment? 
Are you ready for the question ? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: All those in favour ? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Contrary? 
The amendment is carried. Is there any further de

bate on the Motion as amended? 
Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman , ... 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard , I'm sorry. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I have every 
sympathy for the Honourable Member, as I was- great 
respect for the reasons for which he is proposing this 
Motion and I would like to assure in all seriousness all 
Members of this House that there are members of your 
Executive Committee who have the same frustrations. 

It may be very difficult to believe, Mr. Chairman, but 
there are times when members of the Executive Com
mittee, elected members, are denied access to files 
which, in my opinion, should definitely be their business 
to read. I don't know what I could do about that in this 
Motion , Mr. Chairman, but I certainly would support 
what the Honourable Member is trying to achieve. 

Mr. Chairman: Ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: That the Government of the Yukon 
amend policy directive number 2/112, entitled 'Proce
dure Directive' to accommodate the specific needs of 
the Members of the Legislative Assembly who need to 
have access to government information in order to 
carry out their responsibilities as the elected represen
tatives of the Yukon people by clearly defining the 
guidelines and what classes of information are availa-
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ble to M.L.A.s and to designate persons within the GO\·
ernment. in addition to the Execu tive Committee. who 
can assist and from whom information can be obtained. 

All those in favour of the Motion as amended? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman : Contrary? 
The Motion as amended sha!l carry. 

1 Motion earned 1 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Just in reply to that. the llonourable 
Minister of Health said . and if she notices in the Motion 
it may even assist the Members of the Executive Com
mittee if they. in the developing of these procedure di
r ectives because it sti ll statesto accommodate the 
specific needs of the Members of the Legislative As
sembly . 

Now the Members of the Executive Committee are 
Members of the Legislative Assembly and you ha ve 
some very specific needs. So. actually. the Motion does. 
does provide the umbrella under which you may de
velop some type of guidelines. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

lion. Mr. Taylor: I have just one interesting com
ment on the point raised by the Honourable Member 
from Kluane. In this policy directive it goes on. it says 
··However, it should always be remembered that a 
Counsellor or MP is an elected representative and is 
therefore entitled to certain special consideration. The 
authority for determining where such special consider
ations apply rests with the Executive Committee 
Member concerned." 

Mr. Chairman: Motion Number 20. It is moved by 
Mr. Hibberd that the Government of the Yukon Territ
ory Procedure Directive PRO 2/106 be amended to re
flect the content of Mr. Speaker's ruling in th::> Legisla
tive Assembly on November 10, 1976. I would ask Mr. 
Taylor to speak to this Motion. 

Hon. Mr. Taylor: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I wish I had a 
copy of this to circulate to all Members, but the proce
dure directive that you've referred to in your Motion , 
Mr. Chairman, PR02/106 is entitled "Forms of Address 
for Yukon Council " and it cites out a list of things which 
generally states that direction received from the Minis
ter of Indian Affairs and Northern Development con
cerning the use of the terms Minister, Yukon Legisla
t ive Assembly and so forth. It states that the Yukon Act 
defines and so forth , and I believe that this is the same 
policy directive as my friend from CBC has directed to 
his radio news-room. I notice that they are almost en
tirely the same. 

As all Members are aware, on November the lOth , a 
ruling was obtained from the Chair in the House which 
prov ided that the Assembly will be and is lawfully 
known as the Yukon Legislative Assembly and is in 
complete accord with practice and usage of Parliamen
tary privileges in Canada and not inconsistent with the 
laws of Canada. 
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You know. I don't think there is much more I can say 
on it. I think that it's important that the Government of 
th e Yukon Territory give recognition within the ad
ministration to this Assembly and to the elected side of 
go\·ernment. I believe that the Executive Committee 
are empowered. I understand. to col lectively mal(e de
cisions in this regard. and this could be a true test of the 
powers that the Executive Committee really has. 

If a major ity of Members of Executive Commi~tee 
agree to alter this directive. as should be the case. then I 
would th ink that i t would be possible to make the altera
tions requested in the Motion . 

So I would say very little more at this time. Mr. 
Chairman. I think it's an important Motion and I think it 
will show to the Legislature that if the Executive Com
mittee can make these alterations. that indeed the Gov
ernment of the Territory do. in fact. respect th;s House. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. I have to rise in full 
lsupportof the proposed Motion. I think it ·s time that the 
people of Canada were aware that the various Members 
on the Executive Committee do have portfol ios. the 
same responsibilities. as any other elected Member 
throughout Canada that's in a Cabinet. 

We have responsibi lities. which in some cases are a 
lot more far-reaching. because a lot of the issues are at a 
much more personal level . and sometimes we find it 
very difficult in our everyday jobs as Ministers to per
form with this type of problem confronting us. which is 
very similar to the situa tion in Prince Edward Island. 

I think it's time we were recognized in this fashion. or 
el se at the same given point in time, if they're not pre
pared to r ecognize us as Ministers for this Government. 
I think possibly then it should be changed in the Gov
ernment of Canada so that we are referring to the Mem
bers of the Privy Council in r elation to their everyday 
duties of their portfolios. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I cer
tainly rise in support of this Mot1011. Being the recipient 
of a very clearly cut. well defined rul ing by Mr. Speaker 
on a point of privilege one day in this House. I must say 
that I would hope the Commissioner of this Territory 
would really take note and suggest. regardless of what 
the Minister has given him as a directive. I would cer
ta inly, if I were the Commissioner. would be fighting 
that directive, and certainly trying to uphold the ruling 
of the Legislature here at home. 

Thank you. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman. I th ink that it 
should be understood by all Members of the Assembly 
that pol icy directives do come before ExCom for clear
ance, procedure directives do not: and probably this is 
one of the reasons why such a procedure direct ive has 
been in the procedure manual of the Government of 
Yukon. 

I have no problem at all in looking at the changing of 
this procedure directive to accurately reflect the ruling 
of Mr. Speaker and the rights and prerogatives of this 



House, which I am completely and totally in agreement 
with. Of course, this House has the authority, I think 
that is obvious, and that the Government of the Yukon 
should of course reflect the authority that this House has 
in styling itself as the Yukon Legislative Assembly, and 
the elected Members of the ExCom as Ministers. 

So we will certainly be proceeding with the passage of 
this Motion through the changing of the procedure di
rectives, and I think that all Members should know and 
the elected Members on the ExCom should know also 
that if all we're doing is masquerading as a government 
and don't have even the power to change a normal pro
cedure directive from Government of the Yukon, then 
it's time that we quit masquerading and joined together 
to do battle with the common enemy, so l don't think 
there will be any problems in having the people who 
come under our control as Government of Yukon Ter
ritory employees know that they are very anxious to be 
able to address us in the forms and style that they would 
like to, as good Yukon citizens, and we'll be back to you 
as soon as possible with the results of changes of this 
procedure directive that was passed on March 19th of 
'75. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, aside from the 
constitutional background to this Motion, there 's a very 
practical one, and I think women are usually considered 
pretty practical people, and that is that when you have 
the honour of representing the Yukon Territory at a 
provincial conference, or a federal/provincial confer
ence outside of this Territory, it is almost completely 
impossible to explain to any non-Yukoner attending that 
conference what a Member of an Executive Committee: 
is. 

They have no understanding, because we are abso· 
lutely unique in government, as far as I know, and no 
Canadian has any background or any understanding or 
any similar experience to compare. They haven't a 
clue, so then you are forced to explain to them that a 
Member of the Executive Committee, an elected 
Member of the Executive Committee in the Yukon, is 
the equivalent of a Cabinet Minister in a province, and it 
is then, as l think I've said at other times in this House. 
Mr. Chairman, that you learn the abysmal ignorance or 
all concerned regarding this government and this Ter·· 
ritory, at the federal senior civil service level, when 
Assistant Deputies, and Deputy Ministers then say to 
you, "You mean you have elected Members in your 
government?'' 

Mr. Chairman, I am not kidding. They have no know·· 
ledge of how far responsible government is moving in 
the Yukon. They have no knowledge whatsoever that. 
there are elected Members to this House who are carry·· 
ing the responsibilities of a Cabinet portfolio, and there 
is only one way to tell them, Mr. Chairman, and that is to 
have the name as well as the game. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, as a final note. 
l think one interesting sidelight to this is that it has now 
been in usage over several years, where we have been 
corresponding directly with Ministers of the Federal 
Cabinet, and it's interesting to note the very real change-
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it has taken through the form of usage over those two 
years, where they were very careful to make sure that it 
said Executive Committee responsible. 

Over the past few years, it has changed. so that al l 
letters now which are addressed from Federal Cabinet 
Ministers to myself over the last six months. have all 
been addressed as Minister of Local Government. and 
the salutory greeting inside has always been "Dear Mr. 
Minister", or "My Dear Colleague". so it's coming 
about that - and they know very well that the usage 
which we are using is fu lly within our jurisdiction and 
realm of responsibility, and it 's interesting to see that 
they are changing so rapidly at the federal level in deal
ing with the ExCom Members. Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 

Hon. Mr. Taylor : Yes, Mr. Chairman. perhaps one 
point that I didn't mention in my last remarks is that 
when the Chair rules such matters, the proclamation is 
untouchable by any outside authority out of this House. 
It is unchangeable. The judiciary cannot change it: the 
Parliament of Canada cannot change it. It becomes. in 
effect, law itself, and whether or not the Minister of 
Indian Affairs recognizes it or not, is another question. 

The problem that we've had with the CBC I think is an 
interest ing one as well, and I was fortunate enough yes
terday to meet with the Director - pardon me. the 
Vice-President, that's what I'm searching for. the 
Vice-President of English Services, and the new Direc
tor of Northern Services, and the local station manager 
and discussed with them the extreme problem we have 
with their reporting, in terms of usage of names of this 
Legislature. We discussed the matter at some length. 
and l was given the assurance by the Vice-President in 
charge of English Services of the CBC that he would 
personally take the matter back and cause a meeting to 
be had in Ottawa or Toronto, as the case might be on this 
subject. 

I don't think that up to the point of that meeting, they 
understood that perhaps they were in contempt of the 
House, and perhaps, you know, didn't intend to be. So 
I'm extremely hopeful that they will do a service to the 
people of the Yukon by changing their policy in light of 
the ruling that has been brought down, and I thought I 
would report this to the House. 

Mr. Chairman: Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. Hibberd, 
seconded by Mr. McCall, that the Government of the 
Yukon Territory, Procedure Directive PRO 2/106 be 
amended to reflect the content of Mr. Speaker 's ruling 
in this Legisl<Jtive Assembly on November 10, 1976. 

All those in favour? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Contrary. 
The Motion is carried. 

r Motion carried ) 
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Mrs. Whyard. 

.. Hon : Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I'm wondering 
If. 1n v1ew of the recent developments in the Province of 
Quebec, whether we should now consider ourselves the 
National Assembly. 

Mr. Chairman: With deference to the Member from 
Hootalinqua . we will proceed with Motion 26, which is a 
little different than what we have been dealing with at 
the present time. It has been moved by Mr. Fleming, the 
matter of the Teslin Sewer Eductor truck and Sewage 
Lagoon. 

Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, th is won't take 
very long and hopefully there won't be much discussion. 
It is moreorless the only way that I had to come forward 
and moreorless get the problem that is in the Town of 
Teslin , direct to the responsible people today . 

I have asked the government when we were going to 
have the eductor truck available and I have asked also 
what we were going to do this winter after finding that it 
would not be available. So therefore I feel that some
thing should be done and I wish to' let the Members 
responsible know that what the problem is. 

The answer I got when I asked when the truck would 
be available was this, I had two answers. One was that it 
~as ordered November 1, '76, delivery expected April1 , 
77. Tank and truck to be manufactured in Eastern 

Canada. The truck requires special specifications such 
as automatic transmission, etc. for easier operation and 
maintenance for L.l.D ., thus requiring longer assembly 
time. I have another one after that that says that Taylor 
Chev /Olds of Whitehorse received the contract to pro
vide a truck and tank delivered April 1, '77 again. 
. And in answer to what is going to happen up until this 

t1me, the answer is if the sewage lagoon site can be 
completed substantially for use, a temporary service 
may be possible , perhaps commencing around mid
December. We have no indication at this time how much 
work will be accomplished on the lagoon site. 

Now the government may not have that information 
even though they a re the prime people that are putting 
out the contract, but I do have information because I 
live right where the site is. The site might po~sibly have 
one cell this Fall, but I doubt it . In fact , I doubt if the 
contractor is working now, due to the weather. 

The idea of a truck in mid- a possible truck in mid
December, which is not really the one which was or
dered, but possibly something else, doesn 't fit in with 
the rest of the situation in Teslin. We have the problem 
now, not in mid-December . And the ser vices may be 
possible. 

I want to be sure that the government understands 
that ~hey now are pumping out the low cost housing, the 
nursmg centres, the wash house in the Indian village, 
and this type of thing is being done whever it is neces
sary and the taxpayer is paying that bill. Our Commun
ity Club is being pumped out once in a while and we pay 
the bill individually. 

In my case, in my place, I will probably again have to 
do something and it looks like I 'm again going to have to 
pay the bill or probably another $200.00 fine. I'd like to 
have some answer from them as to whether they are 
going to do sorr>ething for the - actually for the tax-
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payer that is not connected up with the government this 
winter in the way of possibly the vehicle that is being 
used now prov ided it is a necessity. We have a couple of 
places that are a necessity and one especially that is 
running into the Lake and has been ever since we 
brought the matter to the ir attention a couple of years 
ago. 

That 's all I have to say Mr. Chairman. I hope that they 
take it in good fa ith and do something about it. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Fleming. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, the problem 
that the Honourable Member raises of course is the 
straight delivery problem from the ordering of a vehicle 
which is a special type of vehicle necessary to do a 
specific job, and even though you order them in 
November, they come back and say it will take six 
months , e ight months, twelve months to deliver. 

Governments are always faced, every private con
tractor, every individual doing business, is faced with 
specialized equipment with the same problem. Prob
lems of government is that by the time they go through 
the budget, financing, and the review of the way that 
they go about ordering, that they don't have the lead 
time and the possibility of ordering several years in 
advance. They have to wait until the money is voted in 
the budget before they can move any fur ther. 

I just want to say something - we'll find a solution to 
the problem that the Honourable Member raises for this 
winter. We, generally, when these problems in indi
vidual communities come up, I think without exception, 
that we're able to find a solution on a common sense 
basis through dealing with members in the community. 

I just wanted to say that I have never been involved in 
a better display of government and local community 
involvement than in the area of the Teslin sewer dis
posal system . 

The first I found out about the necessity for- that the 
problem was evident in Teslin, that something should be 
done about it, the first corr espondence I had was on 
November 3rd of 1975. Within the course of the year, Mr. 
Chairman, there has been a total engineering program 
that was initiated by members of the Teslin District, 
who said we don't want the normal engineering prog
ram where people come down and put a different sys
tem that we don't want. We know what we want , we 
want this time to be able to go to the engineers and say, 
"These are our ideas and we would like to see you work 
on our ideas" , rather than come with the normal type 
system and tell us that this is what we want. · 

That 's what was happening, the members were con
sulted all the way along the line, a vote was taken, it got 
support and so we went on further in putting the plan 
that was voted upon by the residents into operation, and 
this year we have let the contract go for the lagoon. It's 
not going to be finished in this building season, and also 
let the contract go for the trucks. 

So within a year, government, through involvement 
with the local citizens, have got th is thing off the ground 
to a very great degree and the total firs t phase of the 
system will be finished by next year. I think that's a real 
compliment to the people in Local Government, and the 
people of Teslin and everybody involved, because I 
know that the work of the Local Government advisor in 



this area. he's been complimented and our Department 
has by his im·olvemenl. and I think it's probably the 
fastest that I've seen all the different areas go into ac
t ion. move into action. to get a solution to a problem 
which was in the Teslin area. 

So. we are not going to get the eductor truck until the 
earliest next Spring. that's a straight delivery problem 
be< au.;e i t' ~; specialized equipment. I don't think you 
can blame government for that. thPre's a problem in 
Teslin over chis winter as there have been in past win
ters. and we'll find a solution to it. I can assure the 
Honourable Member from Hootaiinqua that we will . 

Mr. Chair man: Mr. Fleming? 

Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman. I would take that as 
very good faith myself. and I won't belabour the subject 
ar.y further myself. Maybe somebody else wants to. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. I think this would be 
an ideal time to talk a I itlle bit more about sewage. 
particuarly sewage disposal systems. and I asked the 
Honourable Member , the Minister of Local Govern
ment. to table the applications and licence forms for 
that the Y.T.G. had appl ied to the Water Board for, for 
water and sewage disposal in the L .I.D. 's and the reason 
I asked for this information to be tabled. was I noted tl1at 
the L.I.D. appl ication for a Water Board l icence had 
been - the application was in the name of the Teslm 
L. l.D. , and the licence was granted , 1 believe, to the 
L. l.D. 

I 'm not sure whether the licence was granted, but I 
know the application was made in the name of the L.I.D. 

Now. Watson Lake , Mayo and Haines Junction's ap
plications were made in the name of Y.T.G. and the 
I icence was also issued to the Territorial Government. 

Now, I'm somewhat concerned, because the L.I.D. at 
Haines Junction are looking at a new sewage disposal 
system , they are reviewing it , and they probably will 
have to apply to have a renewal of their licence and I 'm 
concerned whether that licence will be applied for by 
Y.T.G . for the L.l.D. at Haines Junction, and that the 
licence wi ll be in the name of the L.I.D. at Haines Junc
tion. The reason for my concern is that under the Local 
Improvement District Ordinance , local improvements 
are turned over to the L.I.D. by Y .T.G. 

It doesn' t - and then the next clause says,' 'The oper
ation and maintenance is done by the L .I.D." It does not 
say that the L.l.D.'s now own that local improvement. 

Now who is ultimately going to be responsible for any 
l iability that may occur, because of that local im
provement, and I 'm thinking of a lagoon or so on. If 
there 's flooding and this type of thing, if somebody 
wants to take some action, they 'll take the action 
against theTeslin L.I.D. , but the Teslin L.l.D. does not 
have money, and they have no capability under the 
legislation to raise money. 

That is the reason , Mr. Chairman , that I asked for 
these documents to be tabled, I wanted to have a look at 
them, and I would hope that the Minister of Local Gov
ernment will look at the situation, to whom should the 
licences actually be granted, the Water Board licences, 
considering the legal positions of the L.I.D.'s in the 
under the existing legislation that they have now? 

l)age .J02 

I think that it puts the. when the appl icat ion is made to 
the Water Board. by the L.l.D .. I think then that some 
are very bad posi tion because they 're giv ing a l icence to 
somebody who doesn't own anything and hasn't any 
capability of ra ising any money. I would cer tainly hope 
that some rev iew would be made. 

lion. Mr . McKinnon : Mr. Chairman. the easy ans
wer is that as soon as the suit came against the L.I.D .. if 
I were a member of the L.I.D. I'd dissolve because 
there's a section in the Ordinance that says that once 
that is done all the responsibilities and all the assets and 
liabil it ies are the responsibility of the Commissioner. so 
you could say well . there you go boys, it's your mess not 
mine any longer. if it were a major problem. 

The Honourable Member makes a very good point 
because there is a problem of if a Local I mprovement 
District is charged with local improvements and the 
asset following the construction. then it would seem to 
follow quite logically that the asset should be in the 
name. in the licensing, of the Local Improvement Dis
trict. That's the problem with all elected officers. the 
Honourable Member knows, whether it happens to be at 
the Territorial Assembly level , at the Municipal level or 
the Local Improvement District level. At any point of 
elective office, anywhere up to, I imagine, a Member of 
Parl iament . at what point does the elected member 
assume responsibility for things he has done and has not 
done? 

We have tried to answer it in various Municipal Ordi
nances. Different provinces have tr ied to answer it in 
various Provincial Legislature Acts and the Federal 
Government has tried to answer it in the House of 
Commons Acts. 

It 's an ever present question and one I don't think ever 
really gets satisfactory answers at any level. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, but I think one of the 
big points is that the L.I.D. legislation does not clearly 
define who is the owner of the asset and I think that this 
is where the problem is that the L.I.D. could say it's 
Y.T.G.'s and Y.T.G . could say that it's the L.I.D.'s, 
because they have turned it over and the L .I.D. would 

·say for operation and maintenance. 
It 's not clear enough and some indiv idual who had 

some great property damage possibly as a resul t of a 
non-functioning of a sewage lagoon or sewage disposal 
system, which is, you know, not inconceivable, would 
have no course of action through any legal structure, so 
that, that is the area where I have some concern. 

They are in the legislation given the power to own 
land, but it doesn't say that they own the local im
provement : it just says they operate and maintain. This 
is the area where I would direct the Minister's attent ion 
and if he is talking about amending legislation I cer
tainly think they should take that into consideration and 
possibly somehow or other provide, if the Territorial 
and L.I.D. are going to get the l icence, they should then 
have some letter of intent or some letter of accepted 
responsibility by the Territorial Government regarding 
the sewage lagoon - the responsibility itself. 

Mr. Chairman: I s there any further debate? 
We will proceed to Motion Number 22. It is moved by 

C.) 
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Mrs. Watson that YTG Liquor Inspectors , who a re re
quired to assist in the administration and enforcement 
of the Liquor Ordinance, be established forthwith under 
the sole jurisdiction and control of the General Manager 
and the Board of Directors of the Liquor Corporation. 

Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman , if the liquor legis
lation ever passes through this House so that we do have 
a Liquor Corporation, my Motion directs that the Liquor 
Inspectors come under the control of the corporation 
forthwith and under the General Manager and the 
Boar~ of Directors . Too often we have our inspectors 
wearmg sever al hats and it 's very difficult to, I 'm sure 
it is very difficult for them to perform and it 's a little 
difficult for the people who are being inspected because 
they never know which one it is, whether today he 's a 
labour inspector or something else the next day. 

I .think I 've spoken on this before and I would be very 
anxious tha t this Motion should pass this House so that 
when and if the L1quor Corporation is established they 
will have at least some type of inspection service that 
they will be able to control and direct. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Cha irman , as seconder of that 
Motion and certainly as I made many comments with 
respect to the inspection services when we were discus
sing the Ordinance, I concur wholeheartedly and I know 
that the legislation that was brought forth with respect 
to the establishment of a Liquor Control Board as such, 
Corporation, is excellent. But I also know that, without a 
realistic inspection service under the ir control , that the 
benefits that supposedly are going to come forth from 
that type of corporation and organization will not ac
crue to the people of the Yukon if we don't have proper 
inspection services. 

I can just see a great frustration if in fact we are going 
to have mspectors as the Honourable Member has said 
wearing a number of ha ts. I think it is all too important a 
subject to deal with if you are just going to have a novice 
inspector involved. I think he has to understand the 
industry; he has to understand the people that he is 
dealing with, the hotel keepers, the people that go and 
frequent bars and licensed premises, and the rest of it. 

I think he has to be ver y comprehensive in his know
ledge of what is going on. That is why I suggest that we 
certainly do put the inspectors under the jurisdiction of 
the Board. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I know that the 
people who are charged the responsibility for adminis
trating and enforcing the Liquor Ordinance will be more 
than pleased to have this Motion carr y in this House 
because it will fill a need they have been pointing out for 
some years. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Mo
tion 22? 

Mr. Lang? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 
ask the Honourable Member, in relation to this Motion, 
just how many liquor inspectors does she envisage hav-
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ing to come under the jurisdiction of the Liquor -Corpo
ration in order to perform this type of function , because 
I think it is fairly - all Members should be aware that 
when we are passing this Motion , which I have no prob
lem with , but at the same time you'd best be aware that 
you are looking possibly at an increase in man years ; 
possibly one, two or three, I don 't know; you are looking 
in the area of possibly 15 to 30 thousand dollars or some
thing. So I think that all Members should be aware of 
what this - the intent of this Motion and the implica
tions of it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I'm well aware jf 
that , but underneath the - but under the Liquor Qfdi
nance if it passes and the Corporation who will fle the 
body that determines the inspection services that are 
required ; I think if it will be up to them to determine the 
number of inspectors and they will make the recom
mendations for the - in the budgeta ry estimates. So I 
would certainly not want to say one inspector, two in
spectors , because if they feel very strongly that they 
require three or four in the Yukon Territory, their 
salaries are charged to the Liquor Account. So it is 
really at their discretion with our approval in dollars 
and cents. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further debate on Mo
tion 22? It was moved by Mrs. Watson, seconded by Mr. 
Lengerke, that the YTG Liquor Inspectors who are re
quired to assist in the administration and enforcement 
of the Liquor Ordinance be established forthwith under 
the sole jurisdiction and control of the General Manager 
and the Board of Directors of the Liquor Corporation. 

All those in favour? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Chairman: Contrary? 
The Motion is carried. 

r Motion carried) 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would move that 
Mr. Speaker do now resume the Chair . 

Mr. Fleming: I second that. 

Mr. Chairman: It was moved by Mr. McCall, sec
onded by Mr. F leming, that Mr. Speaker do now reslfme 
the Chair. Are you ready for the question? 

Some Members: Question .• 

Mr. Chairman: Are you in favour? 

Some Members: Agr eed. 

Mr. Chairman: Motion is carried. 

(Motion carried) 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order. 
May we have a r eport from the Chairman of Commit-



tee~·· 

Mr. Hibberd: Yc~. :vir . Speaker. The Committee of 
the Whole ha\·c dis<:ussed Motions 2i. 6. 20.26 and 22 and 
dire<:ted me to report the same. 

The Commit tee of the Whole ha\'(~ also <:ons1dered Bil I 
:'-lumber II.·· An Ordinance to Amend the Pub I 1e Sen· Jet• 
Stall Relations Ordinance" and Bill Number 12 "An 
Ordmance to Amend the Municipal Ordinance". and 
direded me to report the same witl1out amendment. 

Committee have a lso consJdt···pd 13ill Number 2 
" Eie<:trJeall'rotection Ordinance· and direeted me to 
report progress on same. and asked lem e to s1 t again . 

Mr. Speaker: You ha\e heard the report of the 
Chairman of Committees . 

,\re you agreed'> 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: May I lla\ c your further pleasun• at 
tins time'? 

The llonourabiE:' Member I rom Hiverdale '? 

Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker. I mo\·e that we do now 
~alit! fi\ ·e o'cloek. 

Ms. Millard: I sceond that Motion. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Vlember from Riverdale. seconded by the Honoura ble 
:vlcmber from Ogilvie. that we do now call it five 
,·clock. 

Arc you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 

Mr. Speaker: Ar e you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 

Mr. Speaker: I shall declare the Motion as carried. 

·Motion earned ' 

Mr. Speaker: This House now s tands adjourned until 
10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning. 

·ADJOURNED , 
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Lf.GISLATIVF. RETUR'IH' J.' 
1<)76 {Third) 'tt:>~slon 

!'ir. Spf.>akcr 
!icn~ben of the Asseably 

On November 18th, 1976 ""'s. ~ttllard uked the fotlowtnp written 

question respectinp. TerritorL3l Agents: 

"Ooes the dC!'finicton of th(' position of TC!'rrltorial 

Agent include tht' following responsibilitlc-s: 

1. to provide access for individunl clLizcns 

to Tcrritori3l regulae ions 

2. to advise individuals concerning gcvernaent 

policies" 

The answer to this question is: 

1. The duties of Territorial Agent are disch3rged by 

Liquor Vendor I in COIII:)unitiea other than \."hltehorse . 

One of the specified duties is to provide information 

in reprelentatlon of various Departmentl of The 

Territorial Covcrn•ent. As all Terdtorhl Agents 

are provided with copies of The Revised Ordinances 

and Regulations persona wishing to exaraine theo may 

do so in the office of the Territorial Agent. 

2. TerrJtortal ARent• are able to adviee individuals 

on C>Jvernr.:~ent policy only in certain areas of concern . 

They are not !aoiliar with all operations of the 

Covern~:~ent and are therefore unable to adv ille on all 

CovernO<lnt policiu. Their j)riaary re:lponsib1lit1es 

r elate to the administrntion of The Liquor Ordinance 

and the t".otor Vehicles Ordinance •• well as 

authoritatlon to tssue Marriage licence•, busineea 

licences and burial pernitl. 

Nove~Dber 22nd, 1976 P.~ 
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Mr . Speaker, 
Members of the Assembly 

On November 15, 1976, Ms. Mill11rd .1sked tht.· follow1.nq qucst 1on: 

Could the Min1stcr of flealth, Weltare & Rehalnlltoltl.On r'-~port to 
the LCCJl.Slilturc conccrn1.ng the stalnll~Ot.lon pl..&ns lor tht! 
aslJestos ta.1.l.lngs at the Cl1.nton Creek m1nc, and also on the 
survey by the Rcg.1.onal ~1n1.ng I:ng1.ncc r on the aslJcstos ! 1Urc 
!.cvels as they occur 1n areas in the Vckon where asbestos .:.s 
handled or stored other thlln at the Cllnton •~lnl'? 

The answer to the above qucst1on 1.s dS follows: 

W1th reqard to the stabilization plan for asbestos tLUllnq at 
Cl1nton creek, the Department of lnd1an and ~orthcrn Affa1rs 
and the Yukon Territory Water Board are ll"' recc1pt of a prcll.t:u.nary 
report on the propoejed rehabil1.tation and stab1) 1~at1on o: the 
wu~t• rock dump anU mill tailings pile. 

Co1.t>siar Aa!Jeetoa corporation ia requ.1.rcd to providl!l a ( 1.nal plan 
for approval. by tho Oopa.rtmont. and the Wate r Doard lix r:'IOnt.ha 
pr1.or to cloeure of the mino. 

Althouqh, under present tailJnga disposal methods, wlnd cro1 10n 
does not appear to be a problem, thls possib1.l1ty Wl.ll be further 
dlscussed and invcstigilted, 

Wl.th regard to the survey of possible hazards rt:!lated to the 
transportation of asbc:Jt.O!I fibre, a full report was prov1dcd the 
Com.-nissioncr on November 19, In sum:nary th1.s repor t stdtcs that 
samples taken on sever a 1 dif f ercn t occssions showed Uul t.: 

(a) in the q a ragc locations levels of asbestos 
fl.bre in the air did not exceed 0 . 23 fibres 
per millill.trc and averaged 0. 01 to 0 . 08 
f.p.m.l. 

(b) in the off-mine sheds and storaqe yards levels 
ranged from 0.04 to 0.16 f.p.m.l. in the yard 
and 0 . 10 to 0.45 f.p.m.l. at f1.xed locat1.ons in 
the shed . 

Howevor, pcruonal aamploa taken on fork lift drivers and sweepers 
in the shcU ro1ngcd frcn, 0.55 to 0 . 86 f . p.m . l. 'l'hcsc lLvcls oriCJl.nA 
from baqs broken during transfer and t.andling, and frOITl hand 
awcepinq operations. 

The above levels arc well below the established occupational levels 
for mining operations of 5 f.p.m.l . at present and 2 f .p.m,l. in 
the future. 

White Pass ' Yukon Route, operators of the transfer shed and 
s•oraqe yard, have been asked to take steps to eliminate bag 
bceakaqe and use vacuwn systems to clean up spilled fibre. Wearing 
of approved ma1ka ha1 &lao been recommended. 

The Regional Director ot Reaourcea and Chairman of the original 
Task Force states that he will arrange for further monitoring in 
tbe ahed area and that if the expected improvement in houae
kteping occurs, it should not be necessary to establish mandatory 
levela or monitoring of such. 

~copy of the Regional Hininq Engineer's report of November 17 
ia attached. 

c 


